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November 10, 2006

The Honorable Mayor, City Commissioners and Citizens of the City of Brentwood, Tennessee:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Brentwood, Tennessee (the “City” or
“City of Brentwood™) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006 is hereby submitted as required by
state statutes. These statutes require that all general-purpose local governments publish a
complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and audited in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America by a firm of licensed certified
public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual
financial report of the City of Brentwood for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all
of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, management of the City has established a comprehensive internal control
framework that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse
and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City’s financial
statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh
their benefits, the City’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to
provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from
material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The City’s financial statements have been audited by KraftCPAs PLLC, a firm of licensed
certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the City of Brentwood for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2006, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the
audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of
Brentwood’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of
the financial section of this report.
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The City was not required to undergo a single audit for the year ended June 30, 2006 as
prescribed by the provisions of U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits
of State, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The City of Brentwood’s MD&A can be found immediately following the
report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

The City of Brentwood is located in middle Tennessee in the northeastern part of Williamson
County, adjacent to the southern border of Metropolitan Nashville-Davidson County. During the
last several years, middle Tennessee and specifically Williamson County has been the top growth
area of the state, and one of the top growth areas in the country. The City of Brentwood
currently occupies a land area of 41.3 square miles and has a certified resident population of
30,617. The City of Brentwood is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal
properties located within its boundaries. It also is empowered by state statute to extend its
corporate limits by annexation into the officially designated urban growth area, when deemed
appropriate from a long term planning perspective.

The City was incorporated on May 13, 1969 pursuant to the uniform City Manager- Commission
Charter, Title 6, Chapter 18, Tennessee Code Annotated as supplemented and amended. The
governing body of the City is the Board of Commissioners which currently consists of five (5)
members who serve four-year terms of office. Non-partisan elections for Commissioners are held
every two years on a staggered basis. Commissioners are elected at-large, rather than by district.
Following each regular biennial City election, the Commission elects two of its members to
serve for a two-year period as Mayor and Vice Mayor, respectively. The Mayor is the presiding
officer of the Commission. The Commission is responsible, among other things, for passing
ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees, and appointing a City Manager, who is
chief executive officer of the City. The City Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies
and ordinances of the commission, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the government,
and for appointing the heads of the various departments. The City provides a wide range of
services characteristic of similar jurisdictions in the State, including public safety (police and fire
protection), street maintenance, parks, library, public improvements, planning and zoning and
general administrative services. The City also provides water distribution and sewer collection
services through the Water and Sewer Fund, a business-type activities fund that has been
included as an integral part of the City of Brentwood’s financial statements. Electric power is
provided by the Nashville Electric Service (NES) and the Middle Tennessee Electric
Cooperative. The Nashville Gas Company and Atmos Energy Corporation provide natural gas
service in the City.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Brentwood’s financial planning and

control. The budget preparation process begins in late fall when City departments begin
preparation of six-year Capital Improvements Program requests. During December, the staff
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initiates the review and evaluation of each request in light of available revenues and in
accordance with the City’s overall goals and objectives. By late February, the Finance
Department compiles a draft Capital Improvements Plan which is submitted to the City Manager
for review, refinement and approval. By late March, the consolidated draft document is
submitted to the Brentwood City Commission for initial review. The program, as modified by
the City Commission, is considered for formal adoption by resolution in mid-June.

In early January, City departments begin assessing resource needs for the coming year relative to
capital equipment, including fleet; maintenance requirements; technology; and, proposed new or
expended work programs. At the same time, a work session is held with the City Commission to
receive initial policy guidance on appropriate service levels and personnel policies. Budget
requests and supporting documentation are then prepared by individual departments and
submitted in early February for the Finance Department and the City Manager’s review.

During February, the Finance Department staff reviews budget submissions and prepares
information for the budget review sessions with the City Manager. Generally, the last half of
February is set aside for the City Manager’s budget review sessions with department heads.
Departmental objectives, measures of performance and operating budgets are refined for
consolidation in the Proposed Budget document during the month of March. Expenditure and
revenue projections for the current fiscal year and estimates for the proposed fiscal year and
thereafter are updated with the latest available data. This information permits final adjustments
to routine operating expenditures and new and expanded programs for inclusion in the Proposed
Budget.

The City Manager’s proposed operating budget for the upcoming fiscal year is presented to the
City Commission by early May for initial review. Budget work sessions are held with the City
Commission by mid May to review the budget and proposed nonroutine work plan. This session
provides the opportunity for the City Commission to ask questions about proposed budget and to
request additional information or modifications as needed.

After the budget work session, three public hearings are held on the Proposed Budget during and
prior to final reading of the Appropriations and Tax Levy Ordinances. The hearings provide
formal citizen input to the City Commission on decisions and issues related to the Budget. The
first reading of the Appropriations Ordinance is held at the second regular meeting in May for
the City Commission to formally consider and amend as deemed necessary and adopt the
authorized ordinances. By late-June with the approval of second and final readings of the
Appropriations Ordinance and Tax Levy Ordinance, the Commission adopts the Budget for the
fiscal year beginning July 1, and sets the tax rate for the upcoming year.

Amendments may be made to the original appropriations ordinance at any time during a current
fiscal year. Except for emergency expenditures, however, increased appropriations may be made
only after the city manager has certified in writing that sufficient unappropriated revenue will be
available to cover the additional expenditures.
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Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund
for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the general fund, this
comparison begins on page 53. The debt service fund comparison is on page 66.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of
Brentwood operates.

Local economy. The City of Brentwood and Williamson County benefit from the highest per
capita income and the lowest unemployment rates in the State of Tennessee and United States. The
most recently available statistics for June 2006 indicates a 3.1 percent unemployment rate in the
county compared to a statewide rate of 5.9 percent and national jobless rate of 4.8 percent. A
survey by American Demographics magazine ranked Williamson County 10th on a national list of
the twenty fastest growing, most educated and affluent American counties. Williamson County is
the 12" wealthiest county in the United States based on average wages and salaries. The 2000 U.S.
Census indicates that Brentwood’s median household income for 1999 is $111,819. By
comparison, the overall Williamson County income is $69,104 while Tennessee’s median
household income is $36,360.

The City’s official population has steadily increased from 4,099 in 1970; to 9,433 in 1980, to
16,392 in 1990, and to 30,617 in the most recent special census effective July 2004. The census
figures reflect a strong but manageable rate of growth (roughly 4% annually) from 1970 to 2005.
Recent trends indicate that about 1,500 new residents are moving into the City of Brentwood
annually.

Regardless of the ups and downs in the national economy, the Brentwood economy remains
relatively strong compared to other communities. The total valuation for new building permits
issued during the 2005-2006 fiscal year was $275,542,307 with 1,629 permits being issued. In
fiscal year 2006, Brentwood had a total assessed value of property of $1,436,572,976, which ranks
among the highest of any city in the State of Tennessee regardless of size and population.

The Brentwood area has one of the largest concentrations of suburban office space in the
Nashville Metropolitan area with 4.6 million square feet of rentable office space. Roughly
20,000 people are employed in the office complexes in Brentwood. A 2nd quarter 2006 market
survey revealed a class A vacancy rate of 4.8% in the Brentwood area, a decrease of 2.1% from
last year’s vacancy rate of 6.9%. This vacancy rate is very favorable with overall rates in the
Nashville office market and similar sized metropolitan areas in the Southeastern United States.
To meet the growing demand, particularly for tenants wanting a significant amount of office
space, two new buildings in excess of 100,000 square feet each will be constructed in the next
fiscal year in Brentwood.

Many companies locate their national or regional corporate headquarters or offices in

Brentwood. The diversity of employment opportunities in the community is significant with the
City not dependent on a single, large employer. Comdata (financial services), BellSouth and
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Aspect Communications (communications), Renal Advantage Inc. and Community Health
Systems (healthcare management), Tractor Supply (retailer), and Doane Pet Care (pet food
manufacturer) are examples of companies who have chosen to locate their national or regional
offices in Brentwood.

The Cool Springs Galleria is located adjacent to the City’s southern limits with Brentwood’s City
limits surrounding mall on three sides. The Cool Springs area now has the largest concentration
of retail development in the State of Tennessee. Since its opening in 1991, the Mall has spurred
significant retail development inside the adjacent Brentwood area and subsequent growth in local
sales tax collections. Additional retail development has also occurred in the northern commercial
area of the City to serve the office and resident population. The growth in local sales tax
collections have allowed the City to maintain a more balanced tax structure and be less
dependent on the property tax to fund municipal services. It has also allowed the City to maintain
the same effective property tax rate for the past sixteen years.

The Brentwood/Williamson County community is firmly committed to providing a quality public
education system. In 1999, the Wall Street Journal ranked the Williamson County Schools fifth in
the nation for students receiving the best education for the lowest cost. In 2004-2005, 98 percent of
high school seniors took the American College Test. The countywide score of 22.0 exceeded the
national average of 20.9 and the state average of 20.5. The county dropout rate is 1.2 percent, with
95% of Brentwood High seniors going on to institutions of higher learning after graduation. A
second high school (Ravenwood High) was opened by Williamson County in August 2002 to serve
the growing student population in east Brentwood and Nolensville. Most recently, a new
elementary and middle school (Sunset) was opened in eastern Williamson County.

MAJOR INITIATIVES - For the Year. The significant projects, events and accomplishments
during the City’s 2005-2006 fiscal year included the following:

e In January 2006, the City of Brentwood’s strong financial position was reaffirmed by Moody’s
Investors Services with an Aaa bond rating. The City first received the highest possible bond
rating in January 2000.

o The City Commission continued to focus staff efforts on identifying and addressing the long-
term needs of the City through formal adoption of a non-routine work plan setting goals and
objectives for all City departments for the 2005-2006 fiscal year.

e The City Commission responsibly addressed the infrastructure demands of a growing
community through formulation, update, adoption and implementation of the City’s six-year
capital improvements program for FY 2006-2011, including a financing and debt management
plan. General Obligation Bonds needed to fund improvements are typically issued every other
fiscal year; accordingly, new 20 year bonds and refunding of certain existing debt in the total
amount of $ 4,800,000 was successfully issued by the City in January 2006 at an average
coupon (interest) rate of 3.88%.




®

Brentwood’s and Williamson County’s economy and tax base remains very strong when
compared to other communities in the United States. The property tax rate that was approved for
fiscal year 2006-2007 beginning July 1, 2006 will be $.49 per $100 of assessed value, which
represents the same effective tax rate for the sixteenth year in a row. The actual tax rate
declined from $.59 per $100 of assessed value due to the recently completed reappraisal of
property by the Williamson County Property Assessor. The increase in property values allowed
the City to lower the tax rate and still generate the same amount of taxes from existing taxable
property. Brentwood continues to have one of the lowest tax rates in the State of Tennessee for
any full service municipality with the City property tax bill for the average house valued at
$420,000 being $515 annually.

Well in advance of the fiscal year 2008-2009 requirement from the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB 45) to expense post employment benefit obligations for retiree health
and life insurance coverage, the City undertook an actuarial study in fiscal year 2004-2005 to
determine the future financial obligations to the City. In a fiscally responsible manner, the Board
of Commissioners moved immediately rather than delaying three years to appropriate $660,000
annually beginning in the fiscal year 2005-2006 to meet this commitment. This is the annual
amount needed to ensure a financially sound program according to GASB standards and to
eliminate unfunded liabilities for taxpayers when, by the year 2016, the number of eligible
retirees is expected to increase significantly.

There was a continued priority to enhance productivity and overall responsiveness of the
departments through the effective use of new technology and equipment in daily operations.
This commitment has kept the overall growth in City staffing levels low while enabling the City
to be responsive to expanding service demands (police, fire, parks, public works, library,
inspections, etc) from a growing population and service area. The result is that the number of
full-time employees per 1,000 residents for the adopted fiscal year 2006-2007 budget will be
6.94 versus 8.54 in fiscal year 1990-1991 or 18.7% less. To put this productivity gain in
perspective, if the City were operating at the same per capita staffing levels today as in FY
1991, the City would have 54 additional full-time employees (290 rather than 236) with an
additional cost to the General Fund of $4 million annually. Funding would have required a 45%
increasein the City property taxes or a corresponding $4 million cut in current General Fund
services.

The City initiated an update to the 20 year comprehensive plan that was adopted in calendar
year 1999. The Brentwood 2020 Plan has served the City well in prioritizing and
implementing goals, objectives and action steps in areas such as environmental protection,
retirement opportunities, commercial land uses, transportation, and growth management. The
update included a major effort to determine citizen attitudes & satisfaction with City services
and overall direction via two surveys which received a remarkable 40% household return
rate. In summary, the surveys showed strong support for current City policy in the above
areas. From a financial management perspective, strong support remains for the City
maintaining the Aaa bond rating from Moody’s Investors Service and minimum reserves in
the General Fund in excess of 40% of the annual operating budget.
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e The City entered into a joint agreement with Williamson County to fund one-half of the capital
cost for a new $3 million Indoor Soccer Arena under construction in Crockett Park. The City’s
involvement is limited to a 50% share of the capital cost plus providing a site for the facility and
extension of water and sewer lines. The County paid for the remaining capital cost and will
assume 100% responsibility for operating costs. When opened in calendar year 2007, the
community will gain a needed recreation facility with no ongoing operating costs for the City.

e In an on-going effort to encourage private redevelopment of the original commercial area into a
pedestrian oriented, traditional downtown, the City undertook a parking structure feasibility
study. Common parking is essential to the success of any mix use development that is targeted
for the area. This planning effort has provided a framework to evaluate the financial feasibility
of the City entering into the public parking business based on various types of private
development proposals and potential tax generation needed to cover capital and operating costs.

e Effective June 1, 2004, the Board of Commissioners adopted an ordinance to provide for a 4%
Hotel/Motel Tax on room occupancy in Brentwood. There are 12 hotels in Brentwood with
1,400 total rooms. The tax collections in the first fiscal year (2004 — 2005) generated $787,808
in new revenue for the General Fund and $955,407 in fiscal year 2005 — 2006. The room
occupancy tax has created no adverse effect on demand for hotel rooms in Brentwood.

o The City completed site design for a new neighborhood park in East Brentwood (Owl Creek
Park) on a twenty acre tract located on Concord Road, between Concord Pass and Bluff Road.
Construction was initiated in the summer 2006 and will be substantially completed and available
for public use by the late spring of 2007.

e Brentwood continues to be one of the most desirable communities to live in Nashville/Middle
Tennessee area as reflected in the number of residential housing starts. In calendar year 2005,
the City had 472 new housing starts which were less than the record of 635 in calendar year
2004. However, as recently as calendar years 1998-2000, the City was experiencing new
housing starts in the range of 170-190 annually. While some slowdown was expected, we
expect housing starts to remain strong and in the 450-500 range annually in the next few years.

MAJOR INITIATIVES - For the Future. The significant challenges, issues and changes that
the City will face in the near future include the following:

e Agreed Sewer Order. The City of Brentwood and the Metropolitan Government of Nashville
& Davidson County entered into an agreed order with the Tennessee Department of
Environment & Conservation in May 2006 to undertake a comprehensive assessment of
mutually used sewer lines and other facilities to identify locations for repair and upgrades.
Certain sub-area trunk lines have experienced an increase in storm water infiltration during
significant rainfall events and associated discharges from manholes into nearby streams. The
goal is to cost effectively identify and prioritize truck line segments for major repairs over
the next 3-4 years. In the interim, both jurisdictions are prohibited from allowing any
additional connections to public sewer in the Little Harpeth River drainage basin except for
commitments made prior to the agreed order. While the City does not know yet the extent of
the needed improvements, we are confident that the improvements can be handled within the
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normal parameters of the six-year capital improvements program. Also note that the current
moratorium on sewer connections will have minimal effect on new housing starts as most of
residential development in Brentwood is occurring in the Owl Creek drainage basin, an area
not affected by the order. Overall, the City believes the agreed order will be positive because
it addresses inappropriate sewer by-passes into local streams during significant rainfall
events and ensures that Metro Nashville will upgrade substandard lines needed to handle the
transport of common sewer to their major wastewater treatment facilities on the Cumberland
River.

e Metro Sewer Users Association. As a result of proposals by Metro Nashville Water/Sewer
Services to unilaterally force new service contracts on its wholesale customers including
substantial increases in the cost for trunk and treatment services, the ten wholesale
customers, including Brentwood, came together to form an association to respond in a
unified manner. The association members were mandated by the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency in the 1970’s and 1980’s to abandon their treatment facilities and connect
to Metro in its role as the designated regional wastewater treatment entity. The association
hired a consultant to analyze the technical and financial data used to support the rate
increases and found significant flaws in the methodology including inappropriate expenses
being allocated to wholesale customers. While the wholesale customers have no problem
paying their fair share of the cost for services, the association will strongly oppose any effort
by Metro to establish a fee structure that is unrelated to the true cost of services.

e Water Service Area Expansion. The City of Brentwood negotiated an agreement in May,
2006 with the Nolensville/College Grove Utility District to take over a limited, target area
within their service district to provide City water. The area in question is just starting to
develop and is expected to have 1,000 new homes over the next 5-10 years. The takeover will
require the City to spend about $3.5 million to extend & provide adequate water service
including a 2,300 gallon per minute water booster station, a 2.5 million gallon water tank &
15,000 linear feet of larger, ductile water lines. The City will fund this service expansion
entirely from new water tap fees which were increased from $2,500 to $5,000 per house
within the new service area.

Debt Administration.
The City issued $9,005,000 in Bonds in FY 2006, consisting of the following:

e $4,800,000 in General Obligation Public Improvement (GO) Bonds for various large capital
projects.

e $2,430,000 of General Obligation Public Improvement Refunding Bonds, issued for the purpose
of refunding $2,300,000 of previously issued General Obligation Bonds.

e $1,775,000 of Water Revenue and Tax Refunding Bonds, issued for the purpose of refunding
$1,730,000 of previously issued Water Revenue and Tax Bonds.
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The City’s total outstanding bonded debt of $36,207,104 is rated Aaa by Moody’s Investors
Service, the highest rating possible. The rating confirms the City’s commitment to sound
financial management and the City’s strong and diverse economic base.

Cash management. Cash not required for current operations was invested in savings accounts
and short-term (less than one year) certificates of deposits. Deferred compensation funds are
invested by the agents with whom they are deposited and are not included in the City’s
investment activities. All investments were in accordance with the City’s Fiscal Management
Policies.

Risk management. The City’s risk management program includes various risk control
techniques, including employee accident prevention training. The City maintains insurance
coverage through the Tennessee Municipal League Risk Management Pool, and meets the Pool’s
guidelines and complies with its rules and regulations. Additional information on the City of
Brentwood’s risk management activity can be found in Note 7 of the notes to the financial
statements.

Pension and other postemployment benefits. The City participates in the Tennessee
Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS). The plan is non-contributory, meaning the employees
do not make direct contributions to the plan. The City makes contributions to the TCRS on the
employee’s behalf. Employees become vested after five (5) years of full-time employment and
shall be eligible for benefits upon retirement, based on their age, their number of years of
employment, and the average of the member’s five (5) highest consecutive years of salary.

The City of Brentwood also provides postretirement health care and life insurance benefits for
certain retirees who meet the City’s eligibility requirements. For detailed information on the
City’s pension and postemployment benefits, please refer to notes 10-11 of the financial
statements.
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Awards and Acknowledgements

Certificate of Achievement. The Government F inance Officers Association of the United States and
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the
City of Brentwood for its comprehensive annual financial report for the year ended June 30, 2005.
This was the nineteenth consecutive year (fiscal years ended 1986-2005) that the government has
achieved this award. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award that recognizes
our conformance with the highest standards for preparation of a state and local government financial
report.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform
to program standards. The CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. We believe that our current CAFR
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement requirements and we are submitting it to the
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Distinguished Budget Presentation Award. The City has been recognized by the Government
Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) with the Distinguished
Budget Presentation Award for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2005. This represents the thirteenth
consecutive year the City has met or exceeded the program’s requirements. This award represents
the highest recognition possible in governmental budgeting.

The award program critiques the budget document on its proficiency as a policy document, a
financial plan, an operations guide and as a communications device. The award is valid for a period
of one year. Management will continue to improve the City’s budget based on comments and
suggestions from the review and will conform to program requirements and changes.

Acknowledgments. The efforts of the members of the Finance Department office staff and the
cooperation of each of the City’s departments were essential in the preparation of this report.
Specific appreciation is expressed to City Treasurer Karen Harper on her preparation and
thoroughness throughout the audit process.

Also, the City is indebted to the staff of KraftCPAs PLLC for its valuable guidance and assistance.
Credit also must be given to the Mayor and the Board of Commissioners for their unfailing support
for maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the management of the City of
Brentwood’s finances.

Respectfully submitted,
i = :ﬂ rd / '
M!%a{/a C\/ix\/z(/{/ﬁﬂ/\ %/ %74/
Michael W. Walker Carson K. Swinford
City Manager Finance Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and Board of Commissioners
City of Brentwood
Brentwood, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Brentwood, Tennessee (the “City”), as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in
the Table of Contents, pages 19 through 52 inclusive. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Brentwood, Tennessee, as of Tune 30, 2006, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Tn accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 10, 2006 on our
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered
in assessing the results of our audit.

-1-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 18 and the Schedule of Funding Progress - Political
Subdivision Pension Plan on page 58 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Brentwood’s basic financial statements. The accompanying financial information listed in the Required
Supplementary Information, pages 53 - 57 and page 59; introductory information on pages i through xiii, combining
and individual nonmajor fund statements on pages 60 through 66, the financial schedules on pages 67 through 73,
and statistical sections on pages 74 through 95 are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The required supplementary information on pages 53 - 57 and page
59, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and financial schedules have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all
material respects to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical section
have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

[t Ot PLLC

Nashville, Tennessee
November 10, 2006
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Brentwood, Tennessee (the “City” or the “City of Brentwood™), we offer readers
of the City’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. The analysis focuses on significant financial position, budget changes and
variances from the budget, and specific issues related to funds and the economic factors affecting the City.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) focuses on current year activities and resulting changes.
Please consider the information presented here in conjunction with our Letter of Transmittal (page 1) and the

City’s financial statements (beginning on page 19).

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the City of Brentwood exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$202,802,553 (net assets). Of this amount, $35,681,022 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet
the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

e The government’s total net assets increased by $7,298,433 compared to prior year.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Brentwood’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $36,822,834, an increase of $7,159,243 in comparison with the prior
year. Approximately 51% of this total amount, $18,477,195, is available for spending at the
government’s discretion (unreserved fund balance).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $18,477,195, or
68% of FY 2007 budgeted operating general fund expenditures. This demonstrates the City’s fiscal
discipline and places the City in a strong financial position to meet unexpected emergencies,
uncertainties at the State level or a general slowdown in the economy.

e The City of Brentwood’s total debt decreased by $3,517,305 during the current fiscal year. The key

factor in this decrease was the payment of principal amounts for existing General Obligation debt
($1.9M) and Water & Sewer debt (§1.6M).



Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction of the City of Brentwood’s basic financial
statements. The City of Brentwood’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City of Brentwood’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City of Brentwood’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as ner assers. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as
a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Brentwood is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Brentwood that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-
type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Brentwood include general government, public
safety, roads and streets, public health, parks and recreation, public library, and community support. The
business-type activities of the City of Brentwood include the Water and Sewer Fund, Municipal Center Fund
and Emergency Communications District.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 19 - 20 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Brentwood, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City of Brentwood can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.




Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, 1t
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.

The City of Brentwood maintains seven individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the general fund, debt service fund and the capital projects fund, all of which are
considered to be major funds. Data from the other four governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the
form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 21 - 24 of this report.

Proprietary funds. There are two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City of
Brentwood uses enterprise funds to account for activities in its Water and Sewer Fund, Municipal Center Fund
and Emergency Communications District. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate
and allocate costs internally among a City’s various functions. The City of Brentwood does not use internal
service funds.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Water and Sewer
Fund, Municipal Center Fund and Emergency Communications District.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 25 - 27 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the
resources of those funds are not available to support a City’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary
funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The City of Brentwood maintains one fiduciary fund, the
Post Employment Benefits Fund.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 28-29 of this report.



Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 30 - 52 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information. The City of Brentwood adopts an annual appropriated
budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to
demonstrate compliance with this budget. In addition, the City of Brentwood’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees is presented. Required supplementary information can
be found on pages 53 - 59 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are presented
immediately following the required supplementary information on pensions. Combining and individual fund
statements can be found on pages 60 - 66 of this report.



Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the
case of the City of Brentwood, assets exceeded liabilities by $202,802,553 as of June 30, 2006.

City of Brentwood, Tennessee
Net Assets - Primary Government
June 30, 2006 and 2005

(amounts expressed in thousands)

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Current and Other Assets $ 48,198 $ 40908 $ 7,779 $ 7,691 $ 55977 § 48,599
Capital Assets 143,797 144,398 53,968 52,232 197,765 196,630
Total Assets 191,995 185,306 61,747 59,923 253,742 245,229
Long-term Liabilities Outstanding 29,119 26,192 8,748 10,312 37.867 36,504
Other Liabilities 11,659 11,594 1,415 1,627 13,074 13,221
Total Liabilities 40,778 37,786 10,163 11,939 50,941 49,725
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets,
net of related debt 119,010 119,611 45,221 41,920 164,231 161,531
Restricted 2,621 2,774 270 270 2,891 3,044
Unrestricted 29,587 25,135 6,094 5,794 35,681 30,929
Total Net Assets $151,218 & 147,520 $ 51,585 $ 47,984 § 202,803 $ 195,504

By far the largest portion of the City of Brentwood’s net assets (81%) reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, infrastructure, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that are still outstanding. The City of Brentwood uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Brentwood’s investment
in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt
must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities. An additional portion of the City’s net assets represents resources that are subject to restrictions as
to how they may be used. These include net assets restricted for capital projects ($1,593,488), roads and streets
($561,571), community development projects ($324,189) and other purposes ($142,077).

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Brentwood is able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and
business-type activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.



Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City of Brentwood’s net assets by $3,697,531,
accounting for 51% of the total growth in the net assets of the City of Brentwood.

increase are as follows:

The City's Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

Rrevenues:

Charges for services

Operating grants and contributions

Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:

Property taxes

Local option sales tax

Other business taxes

Licenses and permits

State sales tax, income tax, other

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Key elements of this

taxes and contributions not restricted

to specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellanous
Loss on disposal of
property and equipment
Total Revenues
Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Roads and streets
Public health
Parks and recreation
Public library
Community support
Drug education
Interest on long-term debt
Other
Contribution to Post Employment
Benefits Fund
Water and Sewer

Rental facilities
Emergency Communications
Total expenses

Increase in net assets before transfers
Transfers

Increase in net assets

Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

$ 626 $ 417 $ 14,095 $ 12,575 $ 14,721 § 12,992
1,039 1,047 - - 1,039 1,047
- 3,339 - - - 3,339
8,931 8,474 - - 8,931 8,474
10,098 8,692 - - 10,098 8,692
3,316 2,894 - - 3,316 2,894
1,931 1,710 - - 1,931 1,710
4,171 3,425 - - 4,171 3,425
1,287 731 307 130 1,594 861
532 106 - - 532 106
31,931 30,835 14,402 12,705 46,333 43,540
5,364 4,508 - - 5,364 4,508
10,045 9,214 - - 10,045 9,214
6,135 7,051 - - 6,135 7,051
63 71 - - 63 71
2,536 1,806 - - 2,536 1,806
1,828 1,705 - - 1,828 1,705
262 240 - - 262 240
109 15 - - 109 15
1,001 1,108 - - 1,001 1,108
10 20 - - 10 20
617 300 60 - 677 300
- - 9,751 9,033 9,751 9,033
- - 464 422 464 422
- - 789 682 789 682
27,970 26,038 11,064 10,137 39,034 36,175
3,961 4,797 3,338 2,568 7,299 7,365
(263) (250) 263 250 - -
3,698 4,547 3,601 2,818 7,299 7,365
147,520 142,973 47,984 45,166 195,504 188,139

$151,218 $147,520 $ 51,585 $ 47,984

$202,803 $195,504

-8-



e Property taxes of $8,929,991 were received in FY 2006, an increase of $456,539 (5%) over the previous
year, a result of the increase in the property tax base.

e TLocal sales taxes of $10,098,176 were collected in FY 2006, an increase of $1,406,400 (16%) over the
previous year due to the opening of new commercial businesses in FY 2006.

e Other business taxes of $3,315,881 were collected in FY 2006, an increase of $421,534 (15%) over FY
2005. This increase was primarily due to: (1) Hotel/Motel tax collections of $955,407, an increase of
$167,599 (21%) over prior year collections, due to increased vacancy, (2) Business tax collections of
$1,135,435, an increase of $150,217 (15%) over FY 2005 collections, due to a robust economy and (3)
Wholesale Liquor tax collections of $355,926, an increase of $149,906 (73%) over prior year
collections, due to the opening of an additional commercial liquor store in FY 2006.

e State sales, income and other taxes of $4,170,870 were received in FY 2006, an increase of $670,166
(19%) over FY 2005 collections, due mainly to the increased investment market returns.

e Unrestricted investment earnings of $1,287,069 were received in FY 2006, an increase of $555,666
(76%) over prior year earnings. The City’s investment earnings are mostly tied to the Federal Funds
Rate, which increased in FY 2006 from 3.25 % to 5.25 %.

e The City did not receive any donated capital assets from developers and State in fiscal year 2006.

Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities

Interest on long-term debt
Other

Drug education
Community support
Public library

Parks and recreation
Public health

Roads and streets

Public safety

General government

0 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,000 10,000 12,000

Expenses B Program Revenues

As the above graph shows, Public Safety is the largest activity, reflecting the City’s commitment to a safe
community. Roads and Streets was also a substantial activity. For the most part, expenses closely paralleled
inflation and growth in the demand for services.
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Revenue by Source — Governmental Activities

Miscellaneous
0.4%

Unrestricted Investment
Earnings 2.8%

State sales, income
and other taxes

13.2% Property Taxes

32.5%
Licenses and Permits
6.6%

Other Business Taxes
11.1%

Local Sales Taxes
33.4%

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Brentwood’s net assets by
$3,600,902, accounting for 50% of the total growth in the government’s net assets. Key elements of this

increase are as follows:

e The City's Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the majority (98%) of the increase in business-type net
assets, with a net income of $3,509,381 for the year. This is an increase of $760,115 from the prior
year. The increase in net income can mainly be attributed to the increase in net water ($336,350) and

sewer ($302,455) revenues and revenues from sewer tap fees ($539,790).

e The City's Municipal Center Fund recorded net income of $52,959 for the year, an increase of

$16,009 from the previous year.

e The Emergency Communications District (ECD) recorded net income of $38,562, an increase of

$7,263 from the previous year.

-10-
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Expenses and Program Revenues — Business-type Activities
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Revenues by Source — Business-type Activities

Rental Facility 911 Fees
3% 3%

Water and Sewer Fees
94%

-11-



(This page left blank intentionally)



Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Brentwood uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Brentwood’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City of Brentwood’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

Asset, Liabilities, and Fund Balances
Total Governmental Funds

June 30, 2006 and 2005
2006 2005

Total assets $ 48,304,511 $ 41,268,739
Total liabilities $ 11,481,677 $ 11,605,148
Fund balances:

Reserved 18,345,639 13,155,122

Unreserved 18,477,195 16,508,469
Total fund balances 36,822,834 29,663,591
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 48,304,511 $ 41,268,739

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Brentwood’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $36,822.834, an increase of $7,159,243 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately
51% of this total amount ($18,477,195) constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at
the government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for
new spending because it has already been committed for debt service ($3,023,388), capital projects
($14,618,603), roads and streets ($561,571) and drug enforcement and education ($142,077).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Brentwood. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $18,477,195. A measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it
may be useful to compare unreserved fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance
represents 68% of total general fund expenditures.



Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and fees
Charges for services
Intergovernmental

Uses of money and property
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Roads and streets
Public health
Parks and recreation
Public library
Community support
Drug education
Other
Capital outlay
Contribution to Post Employment Benefit Fund
Debt service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in/out (net)

Proceeds of general obligation bonds
Proceeds of refunding bonds

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Bond premium/discount (net)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

13-

2006

2005

$ 22,344,048 § 20,059,577

1,930,755 1,709,803
392,005 226,857
234,322 189,845

5,209,874 4,471,886
1,287,069 731,403
532,213 106,310
31,930,286 27,495,681
4,457,292 4,220,253
9,405,597 8,713,433
3,676,825 3,180,765
63,753 71,764
1,284,465 1,125,016
1,645,071 1,518,773
241,243 239,793
31,593 10,628
5,395 -
4,692,511 5,800,950
617,000 300,000
3,196,222 3,044,836
29,316,967 28,226,211
2,613,319 (730,530)
(263,400) (250,000)
4,800,000 -
2,430,000 -

(2,398,471) -

(22,205) -
4,545,924 (250,000)
7,159,243 (980,530)

29,663,591 30,644,121

$ 36,822,834 $ 29,663,591




The fund balance of the City of Brentwood’s general fund increased by $1,968,726 during the current fiscal
year. Key factors in this fund for 2006 are mentioned previously and include:

o Local sales tax increased by $1,406,400 (16%) compared to the previous year, a result of the opening of
several new commercial businesses.

e State Income Tax (Hall Tax) increased by $670,166 over FY 2005 due to higher investment market
returns.
The State Shared Sales tax increased by $199,510 (11%) from the previous year.
Residential and commercial property tax collections increased by $456,539 (5%) over the previous
year, a result of the increase in the property tax base.

e Wholesale Liquor tax increased by $149,906 (73%) compared to FY 2005, the result of a new
commercial liquor store opening.
Hotel/Motel tax revenue increased by $167,599 compared to FY 2005 due to increased vacancy.
The general fund departments demonstrated fiscal responsibility by turning back unspent budget
expenditures of $518,339.

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $3,023,388 all of which is reserved for the payment of debt
service. The net increase in fund balance during the current year in the debt service fund was $71,382.
Principal payments increased $211,371 and interest payments decreased $106,100 over FY 2005 amounts.
Please see Note 5 for additional information on the City’s long-term liabilities.

Proprietary funds. The City of Brentwood’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water and Sewer Fund at the end of the year amounted to $5,095,198, for the
Municipal Center Fund, $500,769, and for the Emergency Communications District, $498,493. The total
growth in net assets for the funds was $3,509,381, $52,959 and $38,562, respectively. Other factors concerning
the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City of Brentwood’s business-
type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and final amended budget (82,724,911 in revenues, $1,200,500
increase in current year appropriations) can be summarized as follows:

Revenues
Increases were made to the following accounts due to higher than originally projected revenue collections:

Local Sales Tax $ 1,550,500
Property Tax Collections 300,000
Wholesale Liquor Tax 175,000
Interest Income 150,000
Building Permits 140,000
Municipal Court Fines 116,000
State Shared Sales Tax 80,000
Corporate Excise Tax 43,500
TEMA Grant — Police 23,693
Fireman’s Fund Heritage Grant - Fire 29,830
FEMA Grant — Fire 116.388
Total Change in Budgeted Revenues $2.724.911
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The fund balance of the City of Brentwood’s general fund increased by $1,968,726 during the current fiscal
year. Key factors in this fund for 2006 are mentioned previously and include:

e Local sales tax increased by $1,406,400 (16%) compared to the previous year, a result of the opening of
several new commercial businesses.

e State Income Tax (Hall Tax) increased by $670,166 over FY 2005 due to higher investment market
returns.
The State Shared Sales tax increased by $199,510 (11%) from the previous year.
Residential and commercial property tax collections increased by $456,539 (5%) over the previous
year, a result of the increase in the property tax base.

e Wholesale Liquor tax increased by $149,906 (73%) compared to FY 2005, the result of a new
commercial liquor store opening.
Hotel/Motel tax revenue increased by $167,599 compared to FY 2005 due to increased vacancy.
The general fund departments demonstrated fiscal responsibility by turning back unspent budget
expenditures of $518,339.

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $3,023,388 all of which is reserved for the payment of debt
service. The net increase in fund balance during the current year in the debt service fund was $71,382.
Principal payments increased $211,371 and interest payments decreased $106,100 over FY 2005 amounts.
Please see Note 5 for additional information on the City’s long-term liabilities.

Proprietary funds. The City of Brentwood’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water and Sewer Fund at the end of the year amounted to $5,095,198, for the
Municipal Center Fund, $500,769, and for the Emergency Communications District, $498,493. The total
growth in net assets for the funds was $3,509,381, $52,959 and $38,562, respectively. Other factors concerning
the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City of Brentwood’s business-
type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and final amended budget ($2,724,911 in revenues, $1,200,500
increase in current year appropriations) can be summarized as follows:

Revenues
Increases were made to the following accounts due to higher than originally projected revenue collections:

Local Sales Tax $ 1,550,500
Property Tax Collections 300,000
Wholesale Liquor Tax 175,000
Interest Income 150,000
Building Permits 140,000
Municipal Court Fines 116,000
State Shared Sales Tax 80,000
Corporate Excise Tax 43,500
TEMA Grant — Police 23,693
Fireman’s Fund Heritage Grant - Fire 29,830
FEMA Grant — Fire 116.388
Total Change in Budgeted Revenues $2.724.911
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Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e Bikeway extension and improvements from Forged Seat to Ravenwood High School via Primm Park,
Montclair and Carriage Hills subdivision.

o Library improvements including a dumpster enclosure and building a glass partition between the
circulation desk and adult reading room.

e Improvements to various parks including Crockett, Tower and Deerwood Arboretum.

e Substantial improvements to connector roads in the east side of Brentwood, including Waller Road and
Liberty Church Road

e Completion on the Town Center Road Improvement project

e Various subdivision improvements to correct miscellaneous, minor storm drainage problems as identified
through complaints and field inspection.

e Various building and system additions and improvements were completed in the Water and Sewer Fund
at a cost of $3,305,990.

City of Brentwood Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)
June 30, 2006 and 2005

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Land $ 66,619 $ 65476 $ 611 $ 611 $ 67,230 $ 66,087
Buildings and improvements 12,552 12,865 2,058 2,156 14,610 15,021
Utility plant in service - - 50,132 47,523 50,132 47,523
Improvements other than buildings 5,860 6,271 489 404 6,349 6,675
Machinery and equipment 4,302 4,602 389 273 4,691 4,875
Infrastructure 52,837 52,190 - - 52,837 52,190
Construction in progress 1,628 2,995 289 1,265 1,917 4,260

Total Assets $ 143,798 $ 144399 $ 53,968 $ 52,232 $ 197,766 §196,631

Additional information on the City of Brentwood’s capital assets can be found in Note 3 of this report.
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Long-term bonded debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Brentwood had total long-term
bonded debt outstanding of $36,207,104. Of this amount, $27,195,000 comprises debt backed by the full faith
and credit of the City and $9,012,104 comprises bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e. revenue
bonds).

City of Brentwood Outstanding Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds
June 30, 2006 and 2005
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
General obligation bonds $27,195 $24430 $ - $ - $ 27,195 $ 24430
Revenue and tax bonds - - 8,065 9,385 8,065 9,385
State of Tennessee loan revenue bond - - 947 1,187 947 1,187
Total $27,195 $24430 $ 9,012 $ 10,572 $ 36,207 $ 35,002

The City of Brentwood’s total long-term debt increased by $1,205,147 (4%) during the current fiscal year. The
key factor in this increase was the net effect of bond proceeds from a January 2006 General Obligation issuance
($4.8M) and the payment of principal amounts for existing General Obligation debt ($2.2M) and Water /Sewer
debt ($1.6M).

In addition to the new bond issue of $4,800,000, the City issued $2,430,000 of General Obligation Public
Improvement Refunding Bonds. The bonds were issued for the purpose of refunding $2,300,000 of previously
issued General Obligation Bonds. The result is expected to decrease future debt service payments by $130,412.
Please refer to Note 5 for additional information on the bond refunding.

Also during the year, the City issued $1,775,000 of Water Revenue and Tax Refunding Bonds. The bonds were
issued for the purpose of refunding $1,730,000 of previously issued Water Revenue and Tax Bonds. The result
is expected to decrease future debt service payments by $136,092. Please refer to Note 5 for additional
information on the bond refunding.

The City of Brentwood maintains an “Aaa” rating from Moody’s Investors Service for its general obligation
and revenue and tax bonds debt. This is the highest bond rating possible and will permit the City to receive
favorable interest rates on our bonds.

State statutes set no limit for the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue. The total
long-term bonded debt outstanding for the City of Brentwood of $36,207,104 translates to approximately

$1,183 per capita using the 2004 special census population.

Additional information on the City of Brentwood’s long-term debt can be found in Note 5 of this report.
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

e The unemployment rate for the Williamson County is currently 3.1%, which is a decrease from a rate of
4.2% a year ago. This compares favorably to the state’s average unemployment rate of 5.9% and the
national average rate of 4.8%.

e The office space occupancy rate of the City of Brentwood’s central business district was 93.1% for
2006.

e Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.
All of these factors were considered in preparing the City of Brentwood’s budget for the 2006 fiscal year.

During the current fiscal year, the total fund balance in the general fund increased to $18,477,195. The City of
Brentwood has not appropriated any of this amount for spending in the 2006 fiscal year budget.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Brentwood’s finances for all those
with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to:

City of Brentwood

Attn: Finance Director

PO Box 788

Brentwood, Tennessee 37024-0788
E-mail: financedirector @brentwood-tn.org
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2006

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 24,440,274 $ 5,943,124 30,383,398
Property tax receivable 9,298,651 - 9,298,651
Sales tax receivable 1,238,185 - 1,238,185
Intergovernmental revenue receivable 2,124,037 - 2,124,037
Accounts receivable 222,044 1,668,712 1,890,756
Internal balances 356,996 (356,996) -
Inventories 60,329 145,554 205,883
Investments 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Restricted assets:
Cash 289,189 - 289,189
Investments 35,000 - 35,000
Capital assets:
Utility plant in service - 71,347,347 71,347,347
Land 66,618,850 610,716 67,229,566
Buildings and structures 15,211,494 3,748,476 18,959,970
Improvements other than buildings 10,543,427 783,156 11,326,583
Furniture, machinery and equipment 11,628,374 2,255,558 13,883,932
Infrastructure 126,503,576 - 126,503,576
Construction in progress 1,627,937 289,215 1,917,152
Accumulated depreciation (88,335,461) (25,066,249) (113,401,710)
Other noncurrent assets 133,568 378,381 511,949
Total assets 191,996,470 61,746,994 253,743,464
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,388,576 1,092,137 2,480,713
Accrued salaries and benefits - 159,098 159,098
Accrued interest 243,897 102,629 346,526
Other payables 167,154 60,743 227,897
Unearned revenue 9,859,824 - 9,859,824
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 2,965,000 1,142,645 4,107,645
Due in more than one year 26,154,243 7,604,965 33,759,208
Total liabilities 40,778.694 10,162,217 50,940,911
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 119,009,889 45,220,609 164,230,498
Restricted for:
Roads and streets 561,571 - 561,571
Capital projects 1,593,488 - 1,593,488
Debt retirement - 269,708 269,708
Community development projects 324,189 - 324,189
Other purposes 142,077 - 142,077
Unrestricted 29,586,562 6,094,460 35,681,022
Total net assets $ 151,217,776 $ 51,584,777 202,802,553

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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ASSETS

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Property tax
Sales tax
Intergovernmental
Accounts
Due from other funds:
Water and Sewer
Mumicipal Center

Emergency Communications District

General Fund
Equipment Replacement Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Drug Fund
Inventories of supplies
Investments
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued salaties

Due to other funds:
General Fund
Debt Service Fund
Equipment Replacement Fund
Municipal Center Fund
Water and Sewer
Emergency Communication
Capital Projects Fund

Other payables

Retainage payable

Deferred revenues

TOTAL LIABILITIES

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

FUND BALANCES:

Fund balance:
Reserved for debt service
Reserved for capital projects
Reserved for street repairs

Reserved for drug enforcement and education

CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

Unreserved

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

See accompanying notes to financial statements

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2006
OTHER TOTAL
DEBT CAPITAL GOVERNMENTAL ~GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL SERVICE PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS
$ 10559471 $ 1019654 $ 9515945 § 3345204 S 24,440,274
9,298,651 - - - 9,208,651
1,238,185 - - - 1,238,185
1,975,150 - - 148 887 2,124,037
222,044 - - - 222,044
520,190 - - - 520,190
. - 26,430 - 26,430
- - 10,645 - 10,645
- 3,734 - 13,129 16,863
2,000 - - 20,674 22,674
60,329 - - - 60,329
5,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 - 10,000,000
172,195 - 116,994 - 289,189
35,000 - - - 35,000
$ 20083215 $ 3023388 § 12,670,014 352789  § 48,304,511
$ 562,023 $ - % 761,136 $ 65417 1,388,576
- - - 2,000 2,000
3,734 - - - 3,734
13,129 - - 20,674 33,803
- - 18,035 8,395 26,430
156 - - 156
167,154 - - - 167,154
9,859,824 - - - 9,859,824
10,606,020 - 779,171 96,486 11,481,677
- 3,023,388 - - 3,023,388
- - 11,890,843 2,727,760 14,618,603
- - - 561,571 561,571
- - - 142,077 142,077
18,477,195 - - - 18,477,195
18,477,195 3,023,388 11,890,843 3,431,408 36,822,834
$ 20083215 § 3023388 § 12,670,014 § 3527894  § 48304,511
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

RECONCILIATION OF BAL ANCE SHEET TO STATEMENT OF
NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30, 2006

Total Governmental Funds Balances $ 36,822,834

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds 143,798,197

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding
bonds, whereas in governmental funds, interest expenditures
are reported when due. (243,897)

Interfund payable, not due and payable in current period and therefore
not reported in governmental funds (173,683)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in
the current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds:

Bonds payable (27,195,000)
Less deferred charges on refunding bonds 490,680
Less bond discount 182,466
Less bond issuance costs 133,568
Compensated absences (2,597,389)
(28,985,675)
Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 151,217,776

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2006

OTHER TOTAL
DEBT CAPITAL GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL SERVICE PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS

REVENUES
Taxes $ 22344048 § - 8 B $ - 22,344,048
Licenses and permits 1,284,070 - - 646,685 1,930,755
Fines and fees 392,005 - - - 392,005
Charges for services 234,322 - - - 234,322
Intergovernmental 4,348,002 - - 861,872 5,209,874
Uses of money and property 660,909 155,812 341,314 129,034 1,287,069
Other 29,105 - 356,890 146,218 532,213
TOTAL REVENUES 29,292,461 155,812 698,204 1,783,809 31,930,286
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 4,457,292 - - - 4,457,292

Public safety 9,405,597 - - - 9,405,597

Roads and streets 2,793,246 - - 883,579 3,676,825

Public health 63,753 - - - 63,753

Parks and recreation 1,284,465 - - - 1,284,465

Public library 1,645,071 - - - 1,645,071

Community support 241,243 - - - 241,243

Drug education - - - 31,593 31,593

Other - 5,395 - 5,395
Capital outlay - - 4,044,577 647,934 4,692,511
Contribution to Post Employment Benefits Fund 617,000 - - - 617,000
Debt service - 3,178,232 17,990 - 3,196,222
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 20,507,667 3,183,627 4,062,567 1,563,106 29,316,967
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 8,784,794 (3,027,815) (3,364,363) 220,703 2,613,319
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 3,067,668 3,505,000 695,000 7,267,668
Transfers out (6,816,068) - - (715,000) (7,531,068)
Proceeds of refunding bonds 2,430,000 2,430,000
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent (2,398,471) (2,398,471)
Proceeds of general obligation bonds - - 4,800,000 - 4,800,000
Bond discount - - (22,205) - (22,205)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (6,816,068) 3,099,197 8,282,795 (20,000) 4,545,924
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 1,968,726 71,382 4,918,432 200,703 7,159,243
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 16,508,469 2,952,006 6,972,411 3,230,705 29,663,591
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 18,477,195 $ 3,023,388 § 11,890,843 $ 3,431,408 36,822,834

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Net Change in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities different from amounts
reported for governmental funds in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense for
governmental activities:

Acquisition of capital assets
Depreciation expense

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but reduces long-term
liabilities for governmental activities.

Repayment of interfund borrowing is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but reduces internal
balances in governmental activities

Interest is accrued on the outstanding bonds in the Statement of Activities, whereas in the
governmental funds, an interest expenditure is reported when due:

Accrued interest on debt obligations at June 30, 2006
Accrued interest on debt obligations at June 30, 2005

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but the issuance of debt
increases long-term obligations for governmental activities.

Governmental funds report the effects of bond issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar
items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized for
governmental activities:

Payments to refunded bond escrow agent
Bond discount

Bond issue costs

Amortization of bond related costs

Expenses reported for governmental activities do not require the use of current financial resources
and are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds:

Change in accrual for compensated absences

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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7,159,243

5,318,058
(5,919,017)

2,165,000

17,830

(243,897)
261,531

(7,230,000)

2,398,471
33,447
38,277

(54,910)

(246,502)

3,697,531



CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Accounts
Due from other funds:
General Fund
Equipment Replacement
Capital Projects
Unbilled utility revenue
Inventories of supplies
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Debt service escrow (state loan)
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
Bond issue costs and discounts, net of amortization
Due from governmental activities
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities (payable from current assets):
Current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries
Accrued interest
Due to General Fund
Due to Capital Projects Fund
Other payables
Compensated absences payable
Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets):
Retainage payable

Total Current Liabilities (payable from current assets)

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current maturities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for debt service

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

See accompanying notes to financial statements

JUNE 30, 2006
MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY
WATER AND SEWER CENTER COMMUNICATIONS
FUND FUND DISTRICT TOTAL
4,815,031 §$ 521,567 606,526 $ 5,943,124
659,902 - 53,404 713,306
- - 156 156
- 8,395 - 8,395
- 18,035 - 18,035
955,406 - - 955,406
145,554 - - 145,554
6,575,893 547,997 660,086 7,783,976
269,708 - - 269,708
51,008,641 2,775,763 183,815 53,968,219
108,673 - - 108,673
173,683 - - 173,683
51,560,705 2,775,763 183,815 54,520,283
58,136,598 3,323,760 843,901 62,304,259
1,142,645 - - 1,142,645
969,252 20,798 102,087 1,092,137
102,629 - - 102,629
520,190 - - 520,190
- 26,430 10,645 37,075
54,988 - 5,755 60,743
115,992 - 43,106 159,098
2,905,696 47,228 161,593 3,114,517
7,604,965 - - 7,604,965
7,604,965 - - 7,604,965
10,510,661 47,228 161,593 10,719,482
42,261,031 2,775,763 183,815 45,220,609
269,708 - - 269,708
5,095,198 500,769 498,493 6,094,460
47,625,937 § 3,276,532 682,308 § 51,584,777
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY
WATER AND SEWER CENTER COMMUNICATIONS
FUND FUND DISTRICT TOTAL
OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales, pledged as security on revenue bonds $ 5,782,348  $ - $ - $ 5,782,348
Sewer service charges, pledged as security on revenue bonds 4,361,055 - - 4,361,055
Rental income - 490,188 - 490,188
911 Fees - - 478,212 478,212
Other 2,922,065 - 60,000 2,982,065
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 13,065,468 490,188 538,212 14,093,868
OPERATING EXPENSES
Water purchased 3,083,177 - - 3,083,177
Depreciation and amortization 1,857,639 147,975 74,965 2,080,579
Sewerage treatment charges 1,101,849 - - 1,101,849
Salaries and benefits 1,300,506 - 576,845 1,877,351
Maintenance 701,891 112,799 30,505 845,195
Utilities 249,049 112,179 230 361,458
Professional services 425,296 24,110 6,975 456,381
Communications - 40,949 73,709 114,658
Other 629,932 25,636 25,366 680,934
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 9,349,339 463,648 788,595 10,601,582
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 3,716,129 26,540 (250,383) 3,492,286
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Contribution to Post Employment Benefits Fund (60,000) - - (60,000)
Interest income 255,234 26,419 25,545 307,198
Interest expense (401,982) - - (401,982)
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) (206,748) 26,419 25,545 (154,784)
TRANSFERS IN - - 263,400 263,400
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 3,509,381 52,959 38,562 3,600,902
TOTAL NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 44,116,556 3,223,573 643,746 47,983,875
TOTAL NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 47,625937  § 3,276,532 § 682,308 $ 51,584,777

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net receipts (payments) on interfund borrowing
Contribution (transfer) from General Fund

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities

CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

BUSINESS -TYPE ACTIVITIES -

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Proceeds from bond issue
Payment of bond issue costs

Principal paid on long-term debt

Interest paid on long-term debt

Contribution to Post Employment Benefit Fund

NET CASH USED IN CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Unbilled utility revenue
Inventories of supplies

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable

Due to (from) other funds

Accrued expenses

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capitalized interest

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY TOTAL
WATER AND SEWER CENTER COMMUNICATIONS ENTERPRISE
FUND FUND DISTRICT FUNDS

$ 13,050,774 $ 490,188 $ 543,831 $ 14,084,793
(6,347,450) (303,937) (23,340) (6,674,727)
(1,329,286) - (595,030) (1,924,316)

5,374,038 186,251 (74,539) 5,485,750
(307,900) - - (307,900)

- - 263,400 263,400
(307,900) - 263,400 (44,500)
(3,562,326) (147,371) (174,321) (3,884,018)
1,775,000 - - 1,775,000
(21,520) - - (21,520)
(3,334,853) - - (3,334,853)
(410,289) - - (410,289)
(60,000) - - (60,000)
(5,613,988) (147,371) (174,321) (5,935,680)

255,234 26,419 25,545 307,198
(292,616) 65,299 40,085 (187,232)

5,107,647 456,268 566,441 6,130,356

$ 4,815,031 $ 521,567 $ 606,526 $ 5943,124

$ 3,716,129 $ 26,540 $ (250,383) $ 3,492,286
1,857,639 147,975 74,965 2,080,579

62,287 - 5,619 67,906
(76,981) - - (76,981)

5,411 - - 5,411
(164,498) 11,736 102,956 (49,806)

2,336 - 10,489 12,825
(28,285) - (18,185) (46,470)
1,657,909 159,711 175,844 1,993,464

$ 5,374,038 $ 186,251 $ (74,539) $ 5485750

$ 24,043 $ - $ - $ 24,043
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR BENEFITS

Fund balance reserved for employee's post employment benefits

TOTAL NET ASSETS

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

08-

TRUST FUND

POST EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS FUND

$ 999.474

999,474

999.474

$ 999,474




CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

TRUST FUND

POST EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS FUND

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
General Fund 3 617,000
Water and Sewer Fund 60,000
Investment earnings:

Interest 39,173
Total Additions 716,173
DEDUCTIONS

Benefits 16,699
Change in Net Assets 699,474

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR BENEFITS
Beginning of year 300,000

End of year $ 999,474

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2006

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Entity

The City of Brentwood (the “City”), located in Williamson County, Tennessee, was incorporated
May 13, 1969. The City operates under a City Manager-Commission form of government and provides
the following services and facilities, as authorized by its charter: general administrative services, public
safety (police and fire protection), roads and streets, parks and recreation, public library, community
support, water and sewer utility services and emergency communications services.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to governmental units, as prescribed by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The following is a summary of the significant
accounting policies:

Reporting Entity

The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for
which the government is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although
legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the government’s operations. The Brentwood
Emergency Communications District was established in September 2002 and, in accordance with § 24-
52 of the Bremtwood Municipal Code, the Board of Commissioners of the City of Brentwood,
Tennessee shall act as the Board of Directors for the District. Due to the “shared governing body” with
the primary government, the Emergency Communications District is presented as a blended component
unit within the proprietary funds of the June 30, 2006 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. Each
discretely presented component unit, if any, is reported in a separate column in the government-wide
financial statements to emphasize it is legally separate from the government. As of June 30, 2006 and
for the year then ended, the City had no discretely presented component units which were required to be
included in these financial statements.

Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements, the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in
net assets, report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. For the most part, the
effect of the interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-
type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements.
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30. 2006

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of the related cash flow. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which the City
has legal title to the money. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligible
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when the payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the government, at which time it is recognized as revenue.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The debt service fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal
and interest on long-term general obligation debt of the governmental funds.

The capital projects fund accounts for the acquisition, design and construction of the major
capital improvement projects of the City other than improvements financed by the proprietary
funds.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the water and sewer department, which
operates and maintains a water distribution and a sewer collection system for residents and
businesses on a user charge basis. All activities necessary to provide these services are accounted
for in such a manner as to show a profit or loss similar to comparable private enterprises.
The Municipal Center Fund accounts for the rental operations of the Municipal Center.

The Brentwood Emergency Communication District provides for operation, maintenance, funding
and enhancement of the City’s existing emergency communications system.
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2006

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued)

The fiduciary fund accounts for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of
other. Trust funds account for assets held by the government under terms of a formal trust agreement.
The City reports the following fiduciary funds:

The Post Employment Benefits Fund accumulates funds for the payment of post employment life
and health insurance benefits for qualified employees as determined under City policy based on
minimum age and years of service at the time of retirement.

Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance
for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The government
has elected not to follow private-sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government’s water and
sewer function, and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported in the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to the customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the City’s proprietary water and sewer and the municipal center funds are charges to customers for sales
and services. The City also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover
the cost of connecting new customers to the system. The principal operating revenues of the emergency
communications district are emergency telephone service charges levied on residential and business
service users. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD., TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30. 2006

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost and consist primarily of demand deposits, short-term
(original maturities of three months or less) certificates of deposit and investments in the Local
Government Investment Pool of the State of Tennessee. The debt service escrow (state loan), funds
held by the State of Tennessee, is not considered to be a cash equivalent by management of the City.

Statutes authorize the City to invest in: (1) U. S. Government securities and obligations guaranteed by
the U. S. Government; (2) deposit accounts at state and federal chartered banks and savings and loan
associations; and (3) the Local Government Investment Pool of the State of Tennessee. During the
current fiscal year, the City invested funds that were not immediately needed in savings accounts and
short-term certificates of deposit. Deposits in financial institutions are required by State statute to be
secured and collateralized by the institutions. The collateral must meet certain requirements and must
have a total minimum market value of 105% of the value of the deposits placed in the institutions less
the amount protected by federal depository insurance. Collateral requirements are not applicable for
financial institutions that participate in the State of Tennessee’s collateral pool.

The State of Tennessee Local Government Investment Pool operates in accordance with appropriate
state laws and regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool
shares.

Investments

Investments consist primarily of certificates of deposit and are stated at cost, which approximates fair
value.

Receivables
All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts.

Interfund Receivables/Pavables

During the year, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or services
rendered. These receivables and payables, if any, are classified as “due to/from other funds”. Other
activities between funds that are representative of lending or borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other funds”.
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30. 2006

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Inventories of Supplies and Prepaid Items

Inventories of supplies are valued at cost using the first-in first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Restricted Assets

Certain assets of the general fund, the drug special revenue fund, the capital projects fund and the water
and sewer enterprise fund are classified as restricted assets because their use is limited by applicable
debt or other agreements.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets
with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of
the capitalized value of the assets constructed. During the year, $24,043 of capitalized interest was
recorded.

Property, plant and equipment of the City is depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 40 - 50 years
Improvements other than buildings 10 - 20 years
Utility plant in service 33 - 50 years
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 5 - 20 years
Computer equipment and software 3 - 5 years
Road system infrastructure 10 - 45 years
Sidewalks 30 years
Bridges 60 years
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2006

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Compensated Absences

The City’s policy permits employees to accumulate earned but unused annual (vacation) leave and sick
days. Annual leave days may accumulate to a maximum of 30 days for employees with up to 5 years of
service, 45 days for employees with up to 20 years of service, and 60 days for employees with 20 or
more years of service. There is no maximum number of sick days which may be accumulated. Upon
termination, employees receive payment for accumulated annual leave days. The City Manager has the
authority to pay employees who resign from employment of the City up to 50% of the accrued sick days
up to a maximum payment of 30 days.

All annual leave is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary financial statements.
A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example,
as a result of employee terminations or retirements. The liability will be liquidated from the general
fund, the water and sewer fund and the emergency communications district.

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.

Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium
or discount. Bond issue costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the
related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuance are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside third-party for specific
purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2006

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property Taxes

The City’s property tax is levied for the current fiscal year each October 1 on the assessed value listed
as of the prior January 1 for all real and personal property located in the City’s legal boundaries.
Property taxes are secured by a statutory lien effective as of the original assessment date of January 1
and as such an enforceable legal claim to the subsequent fiscal year levy exists at year end.

Assessed values are established by the State of Tennessee at the following rates of appraised market

value:
Public utility property 55%
Industrial and commercial property:
Real 40%
Personal 30%
Residential, agricultural, homebelt, forest and farm property 25%

Taxes were levied at the rate of $.59 per $100 of assessed valuation for the year ended June 30, 2006.

Payments may be made during the period from October 1 through February 28 and are delinquent on
March 1. Current tax collections of $8,153,723 were reported as revenue for the year ended June 30,
2006, and were approximately 96.5% of the tax levy.

Of the $9,298.651 property taxes receivable, $8,885,916 represents the estimated net realizable 2006
property taxes. This receivable is reported in the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds with offsetting
deferred revenue for the amounts not available at June 30, 2006. Amounts available at June 30, 2006
have been recorded as revenue in the governmental fund statements.
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD. TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30. 2006

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The City’s cash and cash equivalents and investments at June 30, 2006 were held by financial
institutions which participate in the bank collateral pool administered by the Treasurer of the State of
Tennessee. Participating banks determine the aggregate balance of their public fund accounts for the
City. The amount of collateral required to secure these public deposits must be equal to 105 percent of
the average daily balance of public deposits held. Collateral securities required to be pledged by the
participating banks to protect their public fund accounts are pledged to the State Treasurer on behalf of
the bank collateral pool. The securities pledged to protect these accounts are pledged in the aggregate
rather than against each individual account. The members of the pool may be required by agreement to
pay an assessment to cover any deficiency. Under this additional assessment agreement, public fund
accounts covered by the pool are considered to be insured for purposes of credit risk disclosure.

Custodial risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failing, the City’s deposits may not be returned to it.
The government does not have a formalized written policy for custodial risk. As of June 30, 2006, the

City’s deposits were fully insured or collateralized.

A reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as shown on the statement of net assets follows:

Carrying amount of deposits $ 40,589,393
Deposits in State of Tennessee Local Government Investment Pool 116,994
Cash on hand 1,200
Total $ 40,707,587
Cash and cash equivalents $ 30,383,398
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 289,189
Investments 10,000,000

35,000

Investments - restricted

Total $ 40,707,587
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30. 2006

NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2006, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 65,475,660 $ 1,143,190 - $ 66,618,850
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 15,211,494 - - 15,211,494
Improvements other

than buildings 10,414,149 129,278 - 10,543,427
Machinery and equipment 11,062,212 566,162 - 11,628,374
Infrastructure 121,657,056 4,846,520 - 126,503,576
Construction in progress 2,995,029 1,440,798 (2,807,890) 1,627,937
Total capital assets being depreciated: 161,339,940 6,982,758 (2,807,890) 165,514,808
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (2,346,218) (313,277) - (2,659,495)
Improvements other

than buildings (4,143,158) (540,515) - (4,683,673)
Machinery and equipment (6,460,470) (865,568) - (7,326,038)
Infrastructure (69,466,598)  (4,199,657) - (73,666,255)
Total accumulated depreciation (82,416,444) (5,919,017) - (88,335,461)

Governmental activities capital assets, net

$144,399,156 § 2,206,931

$ (2,807,890) $143,798,197
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2006
NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 610,716 - $ - % 610,716
Capital assets being depreciated:
Utility plant in service 66,983,973 4,363,374 - 71,347,347
Buildings, structures and improvements 3,748,476 - - 3,748,476
Improvements other than buildings 649,968 133,188 - 783,156
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 1,975,532 280,026 - 2,255,558
Construction in progress 1,264,501 3,305,993 (4,281,279) 289,215
Total capital assets being depreciated: 74,622,450 8,082,581  (4,281,279) _ 78,423,752
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Utility plant in service (19,460,926)  (1,754,783) - (21,215,709)
Buildings, structures and improvements (1,592,520) (97,730) - (1,690,250)
Improvements other than buildings (245,634) (48,583) - (294,217)
Machinery, equipment and vehicles (1,702,377) (163,696) - (1,866,073)
Total accumulated depreciation (23,001,457) (2,064,792) - (25,066,249)

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 52,231,709 § 6,017,789 § (4,281,279) $ 53,968,219
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JUNE 30. 2006
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30. 2006

NOTE 4 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2006 are attributable to the budgeted allocation of
resources from one fund to another and consist of the following:

Transfer In:
Debt Capital
Service Projects Nonmajor Emergency
Transfer Out: Fund Fund Governmental Communications Totals
General Fund $ 3,067,668 $ 2,790,000 $ 695,000 $ 263,400 $ 6,816,068
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - 715,000 - - 715,000
Total Transfers $ 3,067,668 $ 3,505,000 $ 695,000 $ 263,400 $ 7,531,068

Interfund revenues and expenses for the year ended June 30, 2006, included the payment of rental fees
for fire hydrant usage totaling $100,000 by the general fund to the water and sewer enterprise fund.
Such amount is included in public safety expenditures reported by the general fund and other operating
revenues reported by the water and sewer enterprise fund for the year. The general fund also paid the
municipal center enterprise fund rents totaling $335,000 for the year ended June 30, 2006 for its use of
the Municipal Center Building. Such amounts are included in the general government expenditures
reported by the general fund and operating revenues reported by the municipal center enterprise fund
for the year. In addition, the water and sewer enterprise fund paid the general fund $100,000 for its
space at the City’s Service Center for the year ended June 30, 2006. Such amount is included in uses
of money and property reported by the general fund and in other operating expenses reported by the
water and sewer enterprise fund for the year. The general fund and water and sewer fund contributed
$617,000 and $60,000, respectively, to the Post Employment Benefits Fund for the year ended June 30,
2006. These amounts are included in expenditures for the respective funds.
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD., TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2006

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities:

During the year ended June 30, 2006, the changes in long-term liabilities were as follows:

Balance Balance Due within
July 1,2005  Additions Reductions June 30,2006 _ one year

Government Activities:

General obligation bonds $ 24,430,000 $7,230,000 $4,465,000 $ 27,195,000 $ 1,965,000
Less: Unamortized deferred

charge on advance refunding (588,436) (131,919) (47,209) (673,146) -
Total bonds 23,841,564 7,098,081 4,417,791 26,521,854 1,965,000
Compensated absences 2,350,887 1,256,156 1,009,654 2,597,389 1,000,000

Total Governmental Activities
Long-term Liabilities $26,192,451 $8,354,237 $5,427.445 $ 29,119,243 $ 2,965,000

Business-type Activities:

Revenue and tax bonds $ 9,385,000 $1,775,000 $3,095,000 $ 8,065,000 $ 895,000
State of Tennessee loan program 1,186,957 - 239,853 947,104 247,645
10,571,957 1,775,000 3,334,853 9,012,104 1,142,645

Less: Unamortized deferred
charge on advance refunding (260,454) (52,833) (48,793) (264,494) -

Total Business-type Activities
Long-term Liabilities $10,311,503 $1,722,167 $3,286,060 $ 8,747,610 § 1,142,645
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2006

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Description of long-term liabilities:

Amounts payable at June 30, 2006, were as follows:

Governmental Activities:

$4,945,000 1998 General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds due in
increasing annual installments through March 1, 2007, at varying rates of
interest from 4.25% to 4.85%. $ 220,000

$1,955,000 1999 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in increasing
annual installments through September 1, 2013, at varying rates of interest
from 3.75% to 4.40% 1,490,000

$5,000,000 2000 General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds due in
increasing annual installments through March 1, 2020, at varying rates of
interest from 4.375% to 5.75% 655,000

$3,030,000 2001 General Obligation Public Improvement Refunding Bonds
due in increasing annual installments through May 1, 2009, at varying rates
of interest from 4.00% to 4.25% 1,240,000

$5,525,000 2002 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in increasing
annual installments through September 1, 2019, at varying rates of interest
from 2.95% to 4.80% 5,445,000

(Continued on next page)
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30. 2006

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Description of long-term liabilities (Continued)

$4,425,000 2002 General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds due in
increasing annual installments through March 1, 2022, at varying rates of
interest from 2.30% to 4.85% $ 1,630,000

$6,300,000 2003 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in increasing
annual installments through September 1, 2017, at varying rates of interest
from 2.00% to 4.10% 5,740,000

$3,685,000 2004 General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds due in
increasing annual installments through September 1, 2024, at varying rates of
interest from 2.30% to 4.45% 3,545,000

$2,430,000 2006 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in increasing
annual installments through September 1, 2021, at varying rates of interest
from 3.75% to 3.90% 2,430,000

$4,800,000 2006 General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds due in
increasing annual installments through September 1, 2025, at varying rates of

interest from 3.75% to 4.05% 4,800,000
Total General Obligation Debt 27,195,000
Unamortized charge on advance refunding (673,146)

$ 26,521,854

Total General Obligation Bonds, net of unamortized charge

(Continued on next page)
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30. 2006

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Description of long-term liabilities (Continued)

Business-type activities debt:

Revenue and Tax Bonds:

$3,055,000 1998 Sewer Revenue and Tax Bonds due in increasing annual
installments through March 1, 2018, at varying rates of interest from
4.25% to 4.85% $ 140,000

$1,200,000 1999 Sewer Revenue and Tax Refunding Bonds due in
increasing annual installments through September 1, 2013, at varying rates
of interest from 3.75% to 4.4% 965,000

$1,955,000 2001 Sewer Revenue and Tax Refunding Bonds due in
increasing annual installments through May 1, 2009, at varying rates of
interest from 4.00% to 4.25% 1,020,000

$3,000,000 2001 Water Revenue and Tax Bonds due in increasing annual
installments through March 1, 2021, at varying rates of interest from
4.00% to 4.75% 820,000

$3,620,000 2003 Sewer Revenue and Tax Refunding Bonds due in
increasing annual installments through September 1, 2017, at varying rates
of interest from 2.00% to 4.10% 3,345,000

$1,775,000 2006 Water Revenue and Tax Refunding Bonds due in
increasing annual installments through September 1, 2020, at varying rates
of interest from 2.75% to 3.85% 1.775.000

Total Revenue and Tax Bonds 8,065,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2006

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Description of long-term liabilities (Continued)

Tennessee Loan Program:

$2,990,906 State Loan Program Revenue Bonds, payable in monthly
installments through February 1, 2011, at an interest rate

of approximately 3.3%. $ 947,104
Total Business-type Activities Debt 9,012,104
Unamortized charge on advance refunding (264,494)
Total Business-type Activities Debt, net of unamortized charge $ 8,747,610

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major
capital projects. General obligation bonds and notes payable are direct obligations of the City for which
the full faith and credit are pledged. These obligations are payable from the assessment of ad valorem
taxes.

All bonds of the Water and Sewer fund are collateralized by the revenues of the department.
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30. 2006

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Debt Service Requirements

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for all long-term obligations outstanding as of
June 30, 2006, are as follows:

Governmental Activities
Bonds
Year Principal Interest

2007 $ 1,965,000 $ 946,781

2008 2,045,000 874,050
2009 2,125,000 800,738
2010 1,725,000 717,279
2011-2015 9,120,000 3,024,454
2016-2020 7,075,000 1,315,711
2021-2025 3,140,000 306,396
Totals $ 27,195,000 §$ 7,985,409

Business-type Activities

Bonds State Loan Program Total

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2007 $ 895,000 $ 305215 $ 247,645 3 30,770  $ 1,142,645 § 335,985

2008 940,000 260,454 255,691 22,725 1,195,691 283,179
2009 980,000 226,104 263,998 14,417 1,243,998 240,521
2010 640,000 189,385 179,770 5,841 819,770 195,226
2011-2015 2,725,000 600,587 - - 2,725,000 600,587
2016-2020 1,655,000 182,775 - - 1,655,000 182,775
2021 230,000 4,428 - - 230,000 4,428

Totals $ 8,065000 $ 1,768,948 § 947,104 ' $ 73,753 § 9,012,104 § 1,842,701
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD., TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2006

NOTE 6 - UNEARNED REVENUES
Unearned revenues consist of the following at June 30, 2006:

Property taxes:

Delinquent taxes $ 221,484
2006 estimated levy 8,885,916
Estimated 2006 Hall Income tax 450,000
Other 302,424
5 0.859.824

NOTE 7 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City maintains insurance
coverage through the Tennessee Municipal League Risk Management Pool, covering each of those risks
of loss. The TML Pool is a cooperative risk sharing arrangement between local government agencies
that works in many ways like a traditional insurer. The City pays a premium, receives coverage, and
can make claims against that coverage. The City meets the TML Pool’s guidelines and complies with
its rules and regulations, including loss control requirements as well as its underwriting standards. Rates
of the TML Pool are actuarially projected to provide adequate funding to cover loss reserves and
expenses, as well as building contingency reserves. Management believes such coverage is sufficient to
preclude any significant uninsured losses to the City. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 8 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable, it is the opinion of the City’s legal counsel that resolution of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the City’s financial position. Accordingly, no provision for any liability
resulting from such litigation has been made in the accompanying financial statements.
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30. 2006

NOTE 9 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City of Brentwood offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all full-time City employees at their option,
permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is
not available to participants until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

The plan’s investments are held in trust by ICMA Retirement Corporation and Nationwide Retirement
Services.

Upon two years of full-time service, the City matches, on a dollar for dollar basis, a maximum of up to
3% of the employee’s base salary. The City’s match for the year ended June 30, 2006 totaled $228,038.

NOTE 10 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The City provides postretirement health care benefits, in accordance with City policies established by
resolutions, to all employees who retire from the City on or after attaining age 55 with at least 20 years
of service. Retiree health care benefits are provided at two levels. Eligible retirees who are between
the ages of 55 and 65 continue coverage under the City’s group health insurance plan. The City pays the
full cost of group health insurance for these retirees as well as 50 percent of the premiums for
dependent health insurance coverage, if applicable. Currently, one retiree is covered under this level of
benefits. The second level of benefits applies when a retiree reaches Medicare age and eligibility under
the group health insurance plan ceases. At this level, the city reimburses the retiree for the cost of a
Medicare supplement policy for the retiree only. Effective July 1, 2002, the amount of this Medicare
supplement reimbursement for all future eligible retirees was limited to 50% of the amount paid by the
City for the lowest cost, individual coverage under the City’s group insurance plan. Currently, five
retirees are covered under this level of benefits. Expenditures for postretirement health care benefits are
recognized on a pay-as-you-go basis. During the year, expenditures of $14,748 were recognized for
postretirement health care for participants.

The City also provides postretirement life insurance benefits, in accordance with City policies
established by resolution. Eligibility criteria was recently amended to limit this benefit only to
employees who retire from the City on or after attaining age 55 with at least 20 years of service.
Expenditures for postretirement life insurance benefits are recognized on a pay-as-you-go basis. During
the year, expenditures of $713 were recognized for postretirement life insurance for participants.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2006

NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND PLAN

Plan Description

Employees of the City are members of the Political Subdivision Pension Plan (PSPP), an agent
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Tennessee Consolidated
Retirement System (TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits.
Benefits are determined by a formula using the member’s high five-year average salary and years of
service. Members become eligible to retire at the age of 60 with 5 (five) years of service or at any age
with 30 years of service. A reduced retirement benefit is available to vested members at the age of 55.
Disability benefits are available to active members with five years of service who become disabled and
cannot engage in gainful employment. There is no service requirement for disability that is the result of
an accident or injury occurring while the member was in the performance of duty. Members joining the
system after July 1, 1979 become vested after 5 (five) years of service and members joining prior to
July 1, 1979 were vested after 4 years of service. Benefit provisions are established in state statute
found in Title 8, Chapter 34-37 of the Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA). State statutes are amended
by the Tennessee General Assembly. Political subdivisions such as the City participate in the TCRS as
individual entities and are liable for all costs associated with the operation and administration of their
plan. Benefit improvements are not applicable to a political subdivision unless approved by the chief
governing body.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the PSPP. That report may be obtained by writing to Tennessee
Treasury Department, Consolidated Retirement System, 10" Floor Andrew Jackson Building,
Nashville, Tennessee 37243-0230 or can be accessed at www.treasury.state.tn.us. Copies of footnotes
in PDF format can be accessed at www.treasury.state.tn.us/tcrs/PS.

Funding Policy

The City has adopted a noncontributory retirement plan for its employees by assuming employee
contributions up to 5% of annual covered payroll.

The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the rate for the year ending June 30,
2006 was 12.88% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirement of plan members is set by
state statute. The contribution requirement for the City is established and may be amended by the
TCRS Board of Trustees.



CITY OF BRENTWOOD. TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2006

NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND PLAN (CONTINUED)

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ended June 30, 2006, the City’s annual pension cost of $1,506,686 to TCRS was equal to
the City’s required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the
July 1, 2003 actuarial valuation using the frozen initial liability actuarial cost method. Significant
actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) rate of return on investment of present and future
assets of 7.5 percent a year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 4.75 percent
(graded) annual rate (no explicit assumption is made regarding the portion attributable to the effects of
inflation on salaries), (c) projected 3.5 percent annual increase in the Social Security wage base, and (d)
projected post retirement increases of 3.0 percent annually. The actuarial value of assets was
determined using techniques that smooth the effect of short-term volatility in the market value of total
investments over a five-year period. The City’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized
as a level dollar amount on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at July 1, 2005 was 10
years. An actuarial valuation was performed as of July 1, 2005, which established contribution rates
effective July 1, 2006.

Trend Information

Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6/30/06 $1,506,686 100.00% $0.00
6/30/05 $1,313,910 100.00% $0.00
6/30/04 $1,023,715 100.00% $0.00

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS

In December 1997, the Board of Commissioners authorized an amendment to the 1979 Trunk and
Sewer Treatment Agreement between the City and the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and
Davidson County (“Metro”) for the purchase of additional sewer capacity in the Owl Creek and Holt
Creek Drainage Basins. In connection with this agreement, the City paid Metro $4,454,707 in February
1998 and paid the remaining balance of $1,347,288 in 2006.

Construction commitments amounting to approximately $1,600,000 were outstanding as of June 30,
2006.
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JUNE 30. 2006

NOTE 13 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

The City, through its water and sewer enterprise fund, purchases water from the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville and Davidson County and Harpeth Valley Utility District. All of its sewage is
treated by the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County.

NOTE 14 - NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 43, Financial
Reporting for Postemployement Benefits Other Than Pensions (“OPEB”), in April 2004, which
addresses requirements for reporting OPEB plan assets by trust or agency funds in their financial
reports. GASB Statement No. 43 will supersede GASB Statement No. 26, and is effective for fiscal
periods beginning after December 15, 2005 for governments with total annual revenues of $100
million or more; for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2006 for governments with total
annual revenues of $10 million or more, but less than $100 million; and for fiscal periods beginning
after December 15, 2007 for governments with total annual revenues of less than $10 million. The
City will be required to implement this statement during fiscal year 2008.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, in June 2004, which establishes standards for
reporting of OPEB plans in the financial statement of state and local government employers. The
statement addresses requirements for the measurement, recognition and display of OPEB
expense/expenditures, related liabilities or assets, note disclosures, and if applicable, required
supplementary information. GASB Statement No. 45 is effective prospectively for fiscal periods
beginning after December 15, 2006 for governments with annual revenues of $100 million or more;
for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2007 for governments with total annual revenues of
$10 million or more, but less than $100 million; and for fiscal periods beginning after December 15,
2008 for governments with total annual revenues of less than $10 million. The City will be required
to implement this statement during fiscal year 2009.

The GASB has also issued Statement No. 47, Accounting for Termination Benefits, which provides
guidance on how employers should account for benefits associated with either voluntary or involuntary
terminations. The requirements of the new statement become effective for fiscal periods beginning
after June 15, 2005 (except for those provisions involving other postemployment benefits, which only
take effect upon implementation of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

REVENUES
Taxes:
Local sales tax
Real and personal property
Public utility property tax
Business
Hotel/Motel taxes
Other
Licenses and permits
Fines and fees
Charges for services
Intergovernmental:
State sales tax
State income tax
Mitigation tax
Other
Uses of money and property
Interest earnings
Other
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current:

General government:

City Commission:

Personnel Services

Other costs
Capital outlay

City Court:
Personnel Services
Other costs

City Manager’s office:
Personnel Services
Other costs
Capital outlay

See accompanying note on page 59.

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED AMOUNTS OVER
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (UNDER)
$ 8,480,000 $ 10,030,500 10,098,176  § 67,676
8,107,000 8,407,000 8,451,347 44,347
435,000 435,000 478,644 43,644
967,800 967,800 1,135,435 167,635
725,000 725,000 955,407 230,407
966,500 1,141,500 1,225,039 83,539
980,000 1,120,000 1,284,070 164,070
263,600 379,600 392,005 12,405
245,700 245,700 234,322 (11,378)
1,933,000 2,013,000 2,060,448 47,448
900,000 900,000 1,473,919 573,919
785,345 998,756 813,635 (185,121)
225,500 375,500 515,610 140,110
94,200 94,200 145,299 51,099
16,000 16,000 29,105 13,105
25,124,645 27,849,556 29,292,461 1,442,905
80,905 80,905 75,191 (5,714)
39,700 39,700 29,583 (10,117)
26,300 26,300 26,092 (208)
600 600 - (600)
244,445 244,445 233,150 (11,295)
3,000 3,000 2,730 (270)

(Continued on next page)
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES., EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED) -

Elections:

Board of commission
Finance:

Personnel Services

Other costs

Capital outlay
Legal services:

Personnel Services

Other costs

Capital outlay
Information/technology:

Personnel Services

Other costs

Capital outlay
Human resources:

Personnel Services

Other costs

Capital outlay
Community relations:

Personnel Services

Other costs

Capital outlay

Planning and development:

Personnel Services
Other costs
Capital outlay
Codes enforcement:
Personnel Services
Other costs
Capital outlay

See accompanying note on page 59.

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED AMOUNTS OVER
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (UNDER)
$ . . -8 .

489,770 474,370 467,682 (7,188)
92,885 107,785 107,763 (22)
2,000 2,000 - (2,000)
155,795 155,795 150,670 (5,125)
74,600 74,600 67,659 (6,941)
310,180 310,180 303,016 (7,164)
62,750 62,750 53,050 (9,700)
24,000 24,000 8,721 (15,279)
240,910 240,910 221,509 (19,401)
54,515 54,515 46,922 (7,593)
100,005 100,005 97,675 (2,330)
121,000 121,000 88,204 (32,796)
409,805 421,045 421,035 (10)
85,355 77,820 77,378 (442)
3,250 2,170 2,149 @1)
563,185 563,185 561,526 (1,659)
59,715 57,540 57,525 (15)
24,550 24,100 22,945 (1,155)

(Continued on next page)
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED) -

Municipal Center:
Rent expense

Insurance/other benefits:
Personnel
Other

Total general government

Public safety:

Police department:
Personnel Services
Other costs
Capital outlay

Fire department:
Personnel Services
Other costs
Capital outlay

Brentwood Safety Center East:

Other costs

Total public safety

Roads and streets:
Public works:
Personnel
Other
Capital outlay
Storm drainage:
Other costs
Capital outlay

See accompanying note on page 59.

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

GENERAL FUND

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED AMOUNTS OVER
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (UNDER)
$ 335,000 $ 335,000 $ 335,000  $ -
951,015 930,515 873,993 (56,522)
40,950 126,450 126,124 (326)
4,596,185 4,661,185 4,457,292 (203,893)
4,179,910 4,120,783 4,064,440 (56,343)
487,470 551,470 551,055 (415)
58,000 58,000 17,337 (40,663)
4,176,420 4,229 451 4,216,817 (12,634)
350,015 428,279 427,942 (337)
39,900 71,583 69,556 (2,027)
56,410 58,470 58,450 (20)
9,348,125 9,518,036 9,405,597 (112,439)
963,705 963,875 963,855 (20)
609,365 610,835 610,303 (32)
105,500 89,360 88,573 (787)
6,500 500 - (500)
50,000 60,000 59,772 (228)

(Continued on next page)
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED) -

Street lighting/traffic signals:
Utilities
Personnel
Other

Service center:
Personnel Services
Other costs
Capital outlay

Engineering services:
Personnel Services
Other costs
Capital outlay

Total roads and streets
Public health:
Co. Health Dept. Contract
Co. Animal Control Contract
Total public health
Parks and recreation:
Personnel Services
Other costs

Capital outlay

Total parks and recreation

See accompanying note on page 59.

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

GENERAL FUND

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED AMOUNTS OVER
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (UNDER)

$ 350,000 $ 360,500 $ 360,300  $ (200)
83,590 83,590 67,433 (16,157)
84,000 84,000 78,444 (5,556)
88,960 88,960 88,587 (373)
152,050 152,050 149,516 (2,534)
310,705 310,705 286,374 (24,331)
53,500 53,500 39,589 (13,911)
2,857,875 2,857,875 2,793,246 (64,629)
15,000 15,000 7,500 (7,500)
58,000 58,000 56,253 (1,747)
73,000 73,000 63,753 (9,247)
657,285 657,285 640,543 (16,742)
690,425 690,425 619,032 (71,393)
31,000 31,000 24,890 (6,110)
1,378,710 1,378,710 1,284,465 (94,245)
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BATL ANCE (CONTINUED) -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED AMOUNTS OVER
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (UNDER)

Public library:

Personnel Services 983,000 § 980,900 §$ 955,395 $ (25,505)

Other costs 690,600 690,600 684,618 (5,982)

Capital outlay 3,000 5,100 5,058 (42)
Total public library 1,676,600 1,676,600 1,645,071 (31,529)
Community support:

Education 210,000 210,000 210,000 -

Economic development 10,000 10,000 10,000 -

International exchange 5,000 5,000 3,052 (1,948)

Crockett Historic Center 16,600 16,600 16,471 (129)

Tree committee 2,000 2,000 1,720 (280)
Total community support 243,600 243,600 241,243 (2,357)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 20,174,095 20,409,006 19,890,667 (518,339)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES 4,950,550 7,440,550 9,401,794 1,961,244
OTHER FINANCING USES .
Transfers to Debt Service Fund (3,065,000) (3,065,000) (3,067,668) (2,668)
Transfers to Emergency Communication Fund (263,400) (263,400) (263,400) -
Transfers to Capital Projects Fund (300,000) (2,790,000) (2,790,000) -
Transfers to Equipment Replacement Fund (695,000) (695,000) (695,000) -
Contribution to Post Employment Benefits Fund (617,000) (617,000) (617,000) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES (4,940,400) (7,430,400) (7,433,068) (2,668)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 10,150 § 10,150 1,968,726 $ 1,958,576
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 16,508,469
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR § 18,477,195

See accompanying note on page 59.
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

POLITICAL SUBDIVISION PENSION PLAN
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Unaudited)

JUNE 30. 2006

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Actuarial UAAL asa

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b (- (a) (a/b) (©) ((b-a)/c)

July 1,2005 $ 14811 $ 17,393 § 2,582 85.15% $ 10,298 25.07%
July 1,2003 $ 11417 $ 14327 § 2,910 79.69% $ 9,159 31.77%
July1,2001 $ 8980 $ 11,810 $ 2,830 76.04% $ 7,472 37.87%

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

An actuarial valuation was performed as of July 1, 2003 which established contribution rates effective July 1,
2005. As a result of the June 30, 2000 experience study, changes were made to two of the significant
actuarial assumptions as follows: 1) projected salary increase of 4.75 percent (graded) annual rate (no explicit
assumption is made regarding the portion attributable to the effects of inflation on salaries) and 2) projected
3.5 percent annual increases in the Social Security wage base.

-58-




CITY OF BRENTWOOD. TENNESSEE

NOTE TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

NOTE 1 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Information

Prior to May 15 of each year, the City Manager formally submits to the Board of Commissioners a
proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. Public hearings are
conducted by the Board of Commissioners to obtain citizen comments on the budget. Prior to June 30,
the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. Annual appropriated budgets for the
general fund, special revenue and debt service funds are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP?).

Budgeted amounts shown are those originally adopted, as well as the final budgets which reflect
amendments by the Board of Commissioners.

Total expenditures for each of these funds may not exceed the total amount appropriated in the budget
ordinance. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within
an individual fund; any revisions that alter the total appropriations for any fund must be approved
through the passage of an ordinance by the Board of Commissioners. All annual appropriations lapse at
year end.

Excess Expenditures

There were no expenditures exceeding the budgeted level of appropriations. Additionally, total
expenditures of the general fund did not exceed appropriated expenditures.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

State Street Aid Fund — This fund accounts for all revenue and expenditures from the City’s share of state
gasoline taxes. Tennessee state law requires these receipts be kept in a separate fund and used for the
construction and maintenance of city streets and certain related street expenditures.

Drug Fund — This fund accounts for funds received directly from the enforcement of laws associated with
illegal drug activity. Under state law, the funds are to be used only for the enforcement of the drug laws and
for the drug education programs of the Police Department.

Public Works Project Fund — This fund accounts for the collection and disbursement of funds for road
improvements needed to meet the traffic demands created by growth in population and business. The funds
are disbursed as available to pay for eligible road projects in the Capital Projects Fund.

Equipment Replacement Fund — This fund accounts for the systematic accumulation of funds needed to
purchase large vehicles and equipment (generally greater than $40,000) without the issuance of capital outlay
notes or general obligation bonds. Funding is provided through annual transfers from the General Fund.
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD. TENNESSEE

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30. 2006
SPECIAL REVENUE
TOTAL
NONMAJOR
STATE PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMENT GOVERNMENTAL
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS STREET AID DRUG PROJECT REPLACEMENT FUNDS
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 412,684 $ 166,247 § 1,593,488 § 1,172,785  § 3,345,204
Receivables:

Taxes 148,887 - - - 148,887

Due From General Fand - - - 13,129 13,129

Due From Other Funds - - - 20,674 20,674
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents - - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS $ 561,571 § 166,247 § 1,593,488 § 1,206,588 § 3,527,894
LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable $ -3 1,496 $ - $ 63,921 $ 65,417
Due to General Fund - 2,000 - - 2,000
Due to Other Funds - 20,674 - - 20,674
Due from Municipal Center Fund - - - 8,395 8,395
Long-term debt - - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 24,170 - 72,316 96,486
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

Fund balance:

Reserved for capital projects - - 1,593,488 1,134,272 2,727,760

Reserved for street repairs 561,571 - - - 561,571

Reserved for drug enforcement and education - 142,077 - - 142,077
TOTAL EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 561,571 142,077 1,593,488 1,134,272 3,431,408
TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS § 561,571 $ 166,247 3§ 1,593,488 § 1,206,588 § 3,527,894
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

SPECIAL REVENUE
TOTAL
NONMAJOR
STATE PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMENT GOVERNMENTAL
STREET AID DRUG PROJECT REPLACEMENT FUNDS

REVENUES
Licenses and permits $ - % - 8 646,685 $ - 8 646,685
Intergovernmental 861,872 - - - 861,872
Uses of money and property 14,552 3,744 53,005 57,733 129,034
Other - 146218 - - 146,218
TOTAL REVENUES 876,424 149,962 699,690 57,733 1,783,809
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Roads and streets 883,579 - - - 883,579

Drug education - 31,593 - - 31,593
Capital outlay - 70,941 - 576,993 647,934
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 883,579 102,534 - 576,993 1,563,106
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (7,155) 47 428 699,690 (519,260) 220,703
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - - 695,000 695,000
Transfers out - - (715,000) - (715,000)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - - (715,000) 695,000 (20,000)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (7,155) 47428 (15,310) 175,740 200,703
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 568,726 94,649 1,608,798 958,532 3,230,705
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 561571 $§ 142,077 § 1593488 § 1,134272  $ 3,431,408
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES . AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

STATE STREET AID FUND DRUG FUND
ORIGINAL VARIANCE WITH VARIANCE WITH
AND FINAL FINAL BUDGET  ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED OVER BUDGETED BUDGETED OVER
AMOUNTS ACTUAL (UNDER) AMOUNTS AMOUNTS ACTUAL (UNDER)
REVENUES
Licenses and perimits:

Public works project fees $ - § - 8 -8 - 8 - 8 - 8 -

Edmondson Branch fees - - - - - - -
Intergovernmental:

State fuel taxes 840,000 861.872 21,872 - - -

Uses of money and property:

Interest earnings 2,000 14,552 12,552 1,100 1,100 3,744 2,644
Other:

Drug related fines and contributions - - - 25,000 121,936 146,218 24,282
TOTAL REVENUES 842,000 876,424 34,424 26,100 123,036 149,962 26,926
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Roads and streets - street repairs 890,000 883,579 (6,421) - - - -

Drug education - - - 20,000 40,000 31,593 (8,407)
Capital outlay - - - 26,600 76,600 70,941 (5,659)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 890,000 883,579 (6,421) 46,600 116,600 102,534 (14,066)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES (48,000) (7,155) 40,845 (20,500) 6,436 47,428 40,992
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers from General Fund - - - - - - -
Transfers to Capital Projects Fund - - - - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - - - - - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $  (48,000) (7,155) § 40,845 §  (20,500) $ 6,436 47,428 § 40,992
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 568,726 94,649
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 561,571 $ 142,077

(Continued on next page)
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED) -

REVENUES
Licenses and permits:
Public works project fees
Edmondson Branch fees
Intergovernmental:
State fuel taxes
Uses of money and property:
Interest carnings
Other:
Drug related fines and contributions

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Roads and streets - street repairs
Drug education

Capital outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from General Fund
Transfers to Capital Projects Fund

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

PUBLIC WORKS PROJECT FUND

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND

(Continued on next page)
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ORIGINAL VARIANCE WITH VARIANCE WITH
AND FINAL FINAL BUDGET ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED OVER BUDGETED BUDGETED OVER
AMOUNTS ACTUAL (UNDER) AMOUNTS AMOUNTS ACTUAL (UNDER)

§ 300,000 § 546,339 § 246,339 § - 8 - - 3

100,000 100,346 346 - - N
15,000 53,005 38,005 16,000 16,000 57,733 41,733
415,000 699,690 284,690 16,000 16,000 57,733 41,733
- - - 665,800 665,800 576,993 (88,807)
- - - 665,800 665,800 576,993 (88,807)
415,000 699,690 284,690 (649,800) (649,800) (519,260) 130,540
- 695,000 695,000 695,000 -
(715,000) (715,000) - - - . R
(715,000) (715,000) - 695,000 695,000 695,000 -
$  (300,000) (15,310) § 284,690 $ 45,200 $ 45,200 175740 § 130,540
1,608,798 958,532
§ 1,593,488 1,134,272



CITY QF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED) -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

TOTALS
VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED BUDGETED OVER
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS ACTUAL (UNDER)
REVENUES
Licenses and perinits:

Public works project fees 3 300,000 § 300,000 $ 546,339 § 246,339

Edmondson Branch fees 100,000 100,000 100,346 346
Intergovernmental:

State fuel taxes 840,000 840,000 861,872 21,872
Uses of money and property:

Interest earnings 34,100 34,100 129,034 94,934
Other:

Drug related fines and contributions 25,000 121,936 146,218 24,282
TOTAL REVENUES 1,299,100 1,396,036 1,783,809 387,773
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Roads and streets - street repairs 890,000 890,000 883,579 (6,421)

Drug education 20,000 40,000 31,593 (8,407)
Capital outlay 692,400 742,400 647,934 (94,466)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,602,400 1,672,400 1,563,106 (109,294)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES (303,300) (276,364) 220,703 497,067
OTHER FINANCING S_OURCES (USES)

Operating transfers from General Fund 695,000 695,000 695,000 -
Operating transfers to Capital Projects Fund (715,000) (715,000) (715,000) -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (20,000) (20,000) (20,000) -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (3233000 §  (296,364) 200,703 § 497,067
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,230,705
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 3,431,408
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

REVENUES
Uses of money and property:

Interest earnings

EXPENDITURES
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Issnance costs
Other:

Bank service charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER

EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers from Historic Commission

Transters from General Fund

Proceeds of refunding bonds

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

See accompanying note to schedule on page 59.

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED AMOUNTS OVER
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (UNDER)
$ 65,000 $ 65000 $ 155812 $ 90812
2,182,830 2,182,830 2,182,830 -
988,320 988,320 967,277 (21,043)
25,000 83,465 28,125 (55,340)
6,000 6,000 5,395 (605)
3,202,150 3,260,615 3,183,627 (76,988)
(3,137,150)  (3,195,615)  (3,027,815) 167,300
15,000 15,000 17,668 2,668
3,050,000 3,050,000 3,050,000 -
- 2,485,340 2,430,000 (55,340)
- (2,485070)  (2,398471) 86,599
3,065,000 3,065,270 3,099,197 33,927
$  (72,150) $§  (130,345) 71382  $ 201,727
2,952,006
$ 3,023,388
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FINANCIAL SCHEDULE SECTION
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

General government:
Finance and administration
Planning and development
Other - unclassified

Public safety:
Police department
Fire department

Roads and streets

Parks and recreation

Public library

Drug special revenue fund

Total governmental funds capital assets

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1,2005 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 2006
$ 37,313 § - $ - § 37,313

553,986 86,604 - 640,590
2,111,291 279,577 - 2,390,868
2,485,012 217,485 - 2,702,497
7,860,109 63,406 - 7,923,515

188,026,942 3,831,082 - 191,858,024
17,850,044 731,469 - 18,581,513
7,848,810 73,191 - 7,922,001
42,093 35,244 - 77,337

$ 226,815,600 $§ 5,318,058 § - § 232,133,658
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

JUNE 30, 2006

Amount
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
General Fund
SunTrust - demand deposits $ 10,476,071
Bank of America - demand deposit 144,745
Fifth Third Bank - demand deposit 76,296
Wachovia - demand deposit 401
Bancorp - demand deposit 32,953
SunTrust - Certificate of Deposit 5,000,000
Bancorpsouth - Certificate of Deposit 35,000
Cash on hand 1,200
Total General Fund 15,766,666
Debt Service Fund
SunTrust - demand deposits 1,019,654
SunTrust - Certificate of Deposit 2,000,000
Total Debt Service Fund 3,019,654
Capital Projects Fund
SunTrust - demand deposits 9,515,945
SunTrust - Certificate of Deposit 3,000,000
Local Government Investment Pool 116,994
Total Capital Projects Fund 12,632,939
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
State Street Aid
SunTrust - demand deposits 412,684
Drug Fund
SunTrust - demand deposits 166,247
Public Works Project Fund
SunTrust - demand deposits 1,593,488
Equipment Replacement Fund
SunTrust - demand deposits 1,172,785
Total Nonmajor Governmental Funds 3,345,204
MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Water and Sewer Fund
SunTrust - demand deposits 4,815,031
Municipal Center Fund
SunTrust - demand deposits 521,567
Emercency Communications District
SunTrust - demand deposits 606,526
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 40,707,587
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Fiscal

Year

2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001
2000
1999
1998
1997
1996

Total

CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN PROPERTY TAXES RECEIVABLE - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

BALANCE BALANCE
JUNE 30, 2005 LEVY COLLECTIONS  ADJUSTMENTS  JUNE 30, 2006
$ - $ 8,448,015 (8,153,723) $ - 294,292
132,560 - (103,753) ; 28,807
21,875 - (15,078) - 6,797
19,468 - (10,107) - 9,361
15,499 - (6,989) - 8,510
37,515 ; (9,725) ; 27,790
18,103 - (7,647) ; 10,456
10,948 . (896) ; 10,052
9,195 : (159) - 9,036
4,290 ; (101) . 4,189
3,911 _ (464) : 3,447
$ 273364 $ 8448015 $  (8,308,642) $ - 412,737

All uncollected delinquent taxes have been filed, as required, with Williamson County’s Clerk and Master.
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS - GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

JUNE 30, 2006
1998 G.O. Improve 1999 GO. 2000 G.O.
Bonds Refunding Bonds Bonds

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2007 $ 220,000 $ 9350 § 190,000 $ 58938  § 210,000 $ 31,778
2008 - - 195,000 51,189 215,000 21,698
2009 - - 205,000 42,986 230,000 11,270
2010 - - 170,000 35,163 - -
2011 - - 170,000 27979 - -
2012 - - 180,000 20,498 - -
2013 - - 185,000 12,604 - -
2014 - - 195,000 4,290 - -
2015 - - - - - -
2016 - - - - - -
2017 - - - - - -
2018 - - - - - -
2019 - - - - - -
2020 - - - - - -
2021 - - - - - -
2022 - - - - - -
2023 - - - - - -
2024 - - - - - -
2025 - - - - - -
$ 220,000 $ 9350 § 1,490,000 $ 253,647  § 655,000 $ 64,746

2002 G.O. 2003 G.O. 2004 G.O.

Bonds Refunding Bonds Public Improvement Bonds

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2007 $ 175,000 $ 64,155 $ 435,000 $ 181,067  § 140,000 $ 125,351
2008 185,000 58,293 685,000 168,155 145,000 122,074
2009 190,000 51,725 705,000 149,018 145,000 118,503
2010 200,000 44,600 735,000 127,418 150,000 114,538
2011 205,000 36,800 750,000 104,205 155,000 110,305
2012 215,000 28,600 475,000 83,705 155,000 105,810
2013 225,000 19,785 295,000 70,230 160,000 100,925
2014 235,000 10,223 305,000 59,501 165,000 95,642
2015 - - 320,000 47,855 175,000 89,945
2016 - - 330,000 35,340 180,000 83,820
2017 - - 345,000 21,833 185,000 77,340
2018 - - 360,000 7,380 190,000 70,495
2019 - - - - 205,000 63,085
2020 - - - - 210,000 54,990
2021 - - - - 220,000 46,280
2022 - - - - 230,000 36,940
2023 - - - - 235,000 27,058
2024 - - - - 245,000 16,676
2025 - - - - 255,000 5,674
2026 - - - - - -
$ 1,630,000 $ 314,181 $ 5,740,000 $ 1,055,707 § 3,545,000 § 1465451
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2001 G.O. 2002 G. O.
Refunding Bonds Refunding Bonds

Principal Interest Principal Interest

3 395,000 § 51,713 § 25,000 § 243,375

410,000 35,912 25,000 242,425
435,000 18,488 25,000 241,475
- - 270,000 235,600
- - 280,000 224,390
- - 610,000 205,618
- - 635,000 178,844
- - 660,000 150,348
- - 690,000 119,965
- - 725,000 87,593
- - 350,000 62,780
- - 365,000 46,065
- - 385,000 28,344
- - 400,000 9,600

$§ 1,240,000 § 106,113 § 5445000 § 2,076422

2006 G.O. 2006 G.O.
Public Iinprovement Bonds Refunding Bonds Totals Bonds
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 175,000 § 181,054 § - 8 - $ 1,965,000 $ 946,781
185,000 174,304 - - 2,045,000 874,050
190,000 167,273 - - 2,125,000 800,738
200,000 159,960 - - 1,725,000 717,279
205,000 152,366 10,000 91,930 1,775,000 747,975
215,000 144,491 10,000 91,555 1,860,000 680,277
220,000 136,335 15,000 91,086 1,735,000 609,809
230,000 127,898 265,000 85,336 2,055,000 533,738
240,000 119,085 270,000 75,805 1,695,000 452,655
245,000 109,991 280,000 65,493 1,760,000 382,237
255,000 100,616 295,000 54,711 1,430,000 317,280
265,000 90,866 305,000 43,461 1,485,000 258,267
275,000 80,673 315,000 31,758 1,180,000 203,860
285,000 69,961 325,000 19,516 1,220,000 154,067
300,000 58,625 340,000 6,630 860,000 111,535
310,000 46,575 - - 540,000 83,515
320,000 33,975 - - 555,000 61,033
335,000 20,875 - - 580,000 37,551
350,000 7,088 - - 605,000 12,762

$ 4,800,000 $ 1982011 § 2430000 § 657,781 § 27,195,000 $ 7,985,409




CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF DERT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS - BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES DEBT

JUNE 30. 2006
1998 Sewer Revenue and 1999 Sewer Revenue 2001 Sewer Revenue
Tax Bonds and Tax Refunding Bonds and Tax Refunding Bonds

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2007 3 140,000 $ 5,950 $ 100,000 $ 38,785 $ 325,000 $ 42,538
2008 - - 105,000 34,659 340,000 29,537
2009 - - 115,000 30,146 355,000 15,088
2010 - - 120,000 25,240 - -
2011 - - 125,000 20,064 - -
2012 - - 125,000 14,720 - -
2013 - - 135,000 9,096 - -
2014 - - 140,000 3,080 - -
2015 - - - - - -
2016 - - - - - -
2017 - - - - - -
2018 - - - - - -
2019 - - - - - -
2020 - - - - - -
2021 - - - - - -

$ 140,000 $ 5,950 $ 965,000 $ 175,750 $ 1,020,000 $ 87,163

2006 Water Revenue State Loan Program
and Tax Refunding Bonds Totals Bonds Revenue Bonds

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2007 $ - $ 77,124 $ 895,000 $ 305,215 $ 247,645 3 30,770
2008 - 66,903 940,000 260,454 255,691 22,725
2009 - 66,903 980,000 226,104 263,998 14,417
2010 - 66,903 640,000 189,385 179,770 5,841
2011 - 66,903 665,000 166,421 - -
2012 - 66,903 685,000 141,538 - -
2013 170,000 63,715 490,000 116,013 - -
2014 175,000 57,246 505,000 96,794 - -
2015 185,000 50,496 380,000 79,821 - -
2016 185,000 43,559 390,000 65,181 - -
2017 195,000 36,434 405,000 49,859 - -
2018 205,000 28,934 430,000 33,547 - -
2019 210,000 21,153 210,000 21,153 - -
2020 220,000 13,035 220,000 13,035 - -
2021 230,000 4,428 230,000 4,428 - -

$ 1,775,000 $ 730,639 3 8,065,000 $ 1,768,948 5 947,104 $ 73,753
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2001 Water Revenue 2003 Sewer Revenue

and Tax Bonds and Tax Refunding Bonds
Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 120,000 $ 33,315 $ 210,000 $ 107,503
130,000 28,515 365,000 100,840
135,000 23,315 375,000 90,652
140,000 17,915 380,000 79,327
145,000 12,245 395,000 67,209
150,000 6,300 410,000 53,615
- - 185,000 43,202
- - 150,000 36,468
- - 195,000 29,325
- - 205,000 21,622
- - 210,000 13,425
- - 225,000 4,613
3 820,000 $ 121,605 $ 3,345,000 $ 647,801

Total Debt Requirements

Principal Interest

$ 1,142,645 $ 335985
1,195,691 283,179
1,243,998 240,521
819,770 195,226
665,000 166,421
685,000 141,538
450,000 116,013
505,000 96,794
380,000 79,821
390,000 65,181
405,000 49,859
430,000 33,547
210,000 21,153
220,000 13,035
230,000 4,428

$ 9,012,104 § 1,842,701




(This page left blank intentionally)



IMN\I

SUOUDZIUDEL(Q) 11fOLJ-HON PUD ‘SIUDUUIFA0D) [DIOT ‘SaIDIS fo SHpRY ‘CL[-Y JRINoI) gNQ JO siuawainbal oy yipm ouepiodde ut pajuasasd st anpayds
SIYL "SIAWAEIS [PIOURI) O1Seq o1 ST SUNUNODJE JO SISEq SWES dY) ST YIIUM ‘BILIGUIY JO SIILIS pAf] oy ut pardaooe Ajjesouad sajdiourid Sununoose
)i 20UEPI0IE Ul pajuasard St pue 29sSaUUL, ‘POOMIURIE JO AIXD) A JO AJANOE JUEIS O1f) SIPRJOUL SPIEMY S1EIS PuB [219pad Jo saimiipuadxs] Jo ANPaYdS A,

NOILLY.LNASHId J0 SISVE - | 1lLON

€L8°C § 0TI'EST ¢ 00§91 § Lvi'eel § § - $ SQIVAYV ALVLS ANV TVIIAIL 40 STINLIANIIXA TVLOL
- $ o00S9r § 00§91 § - $ § - $ SAAVMYV ALVLS 40 STINLIANAIXHA TVLOL
- 000°01 000°01 - - ooo'or  $ 90/0¢/9 - SO/1/L VIN V/N ey ddueudjurely Surddepy s10
- $ 00§9 $ 009 § - $ $ - [ $ 90/¥/8 - 90/1/T VIN VIN jueln) A5ojouydo], soAnydry pue Areiqry
221G 99ssoUUR ], ‘9)el§ Jo JudIeda(y
935SIUUA Y, JO AeI§
SAAVMY HLVLS
£L8°C § 0z90el ¢ - $ LyLeer § $ - $ SMUAVAY TVIIHA JO STINLIANTIXT TVLOL
€L8'T 079°9¢1 - LYL'EET - LINHWADVNVYN ADNAOTHNA TVIdddd TV.LOL
oLy 907'8¢ - L06°6€ - - $ o000 $ V/N 086C-dd-+00T-MINH  vv0'L6 JURIG 10V 2L
PLSY $ vIv's6  $ - $ or8e6 § $ - $ - $ ¥iv'ge  $ VIN Tr16-d-SO-Wd44dSH  880°L6 9DUEISISSY IsesI
:KouoBy Juowadeuey

KouoFrourg s9ssauua], ayj y3noy passed
AONTDV INHIWHDVNVIN ADNHTOTYTNH TVIHATL
SAAVAY TVIIATI

SO/OE/9 somyipuadxyy  §1d1o09y sidroooy  swounsnlpy  $0/1/L junoury junowy pouad IaqunN #YAAD uondrosa(]

(pairaya) aels [e1apag (ponoya(]) eI JUBID eI JueID [eropag eI
poILIoOY paniooy aweig erapag

900C "0€ ANNI dAANT VAR THL YO

SMAVMYV dLVLS ANV TVIHAET 40 SRANLIANTIXH J0 TNATHOS

TAHSSENNAALL "TQOOMINTIL A0 ALID



(This page left blank intentionally)



STATISTICAL SECTION
(Not Covered by Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants)

This part of the City of Brentwood’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health

CONTENTS
Page
Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s
financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 74-79
Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the City’s
ability to generate its property and sales taxes. 80 - 86
Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s
current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. 87-90
Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the City’s financial activities take place and to help make
comparisons over time and with other governments. 91-92
Operating Information
These schedules contain information about the City’s operations and resources to help the
reader understand how the City’s financial information relates to the services the City provides
and the activities it performs. 93-95

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented Statement 34 in 2002; schedules presenting
government-wide information include information beginning in that year.



(This page left blank intentionally)



I.th

-9013J0 sropjonduro)) 29ssauua], Jo eIS Y £q

porardioun se 9¢ pue $¢ ‘¢¢ siuswatels gsy o 1apun Sunrodar xey Aredord o1 Sunear 71,°L96°¢$ Jo junowe
Ay U1 YAV SOOT AU UI SIOSSE 19U [BIUSWILIIA0S Pajotnsaiun 0y pajsod seam jusunsnfpe pouad oud v

€66°708°T0C  § @ OTIFOS'S6T  § 8¢T°LOTT61 $ 182°110°981 $ 658°6LT'081  $
7T0'189°¢E 696'876°0¢ 601°TSTYE 012°969°0€ [ArAA (RS
€0 1687 L60PYO°E ECY'PS8T 006°STH°C £9%°670°C
86T 0TVl § PSOTESTOT  § 965°000°SS1 $ TL1668°CST $ PRICIT'LYT  §
LLLYSSTS CLY'E86 LY 09€991°6y 8L8 €90ty SIseyrLior
09%" 7609 196°C6L°S 081°0£S°S S90°eSTY 7P LILY
80L°69C 80L'69T 80L°69C 80L69C 80L°69¢
609°0TT'sy  § 90T°0T6 1Y $ TLY'99€°6€ $ SOT1+9°8€ $ 99¢°S0L SE $
OLL'LITIST  § SYToTS'LY1L  $ 8LLOV6 OV § COr'LY6 T $ yreeeseer  §
79598567 m 800°SE1°ST 6T6°1TL'8T SYIEps ot TLL'SYT'OT
§T€1T9T 68€VLLT STLYS8ST T61°9P1°C CCLGLLT
688°600°611  § 8¥8'019°611 ¢ YCIve9 Sl ¢ 990°8ST Y11 $ SI8°LOS'TIT  §

900T §00¢ 00T £00T 00T

AVHA TVOSIH
SAVHA TVOSIHH AT LSV

(@IXIANVND ININOJNOD Ad SLHSSV LAN

TAASSHNNHL ‘AOOMINTIL 40 ALID

*700Z 189K [BOSI UI ¢ USRS SO poyuatuajduut
11 usyam uoneuIoyur feniooe 11odar 03 uedaq A0 oy, ag0N

s10sse 1ou JuauruIaA0s Arewnd felo],

paloLIsaI)

PaIoINsay

1QOp poaje[al Jo 10U ‘s1asse [eided ur pasaau]
JUSUIIDA0S ATRTULI

s198sE 19U soniAnoe adAy-ssaursnq Jelo],

PaIdLISAIIN)

Pa1oINSaY

1qap pare[al Jo Jau ‘sjasse [ended ur pajsaau]
sonianoe odA)-ssoursng

S19SSE 19U SONTATIOR [BJUSWIISA0S [BI10],

PoIoLISaIL)

PSRy

1Gap pRIE[al Jo 1au ‘s1asse [ejded ur paiseau]
SIIIATIOL [EIUSUITIIAOD)



-GL-

661°6SL'ST  § OEL'OLE'LT  $ L91'G00°LT  § 0v0'68591 § T69°LLY'TT  $
898°C60'71 8EE VLS TT PEVPLLTT SL8'TTT 11 171°0L9°01
TIT'8ES 8LS ISy TT9'IEY Y76°6LT -
881°06¥ 800°6¥Y To1°LEY £5T'8hY 80Z°68€
897'CO0°C T TSL'ELTT 059°506°01 8L9v67°01 ££6'08C°01
1££'599°] T6£T08Y £EL'OETS S91°99¢°C 166°L00°T
- 981°6£€°C £1L°0S0°Y S6S'EET'Y -
¥00'6€0°T YOS OP0° T 909°T9L 688°LYL 001°€99
§4% ¢4 LL8VT £L61T 180°61 1€2°0C
985°ST1 966°€6 £98°S6 851°C8 L80T8
101°6T SLT'LT ¥9L°TT SIs'Tt 165°2¢C
PTeSS L69'CY yT19Y 699°¢€ 000°LT
S00°T6t L58°9TT 069°0€T 856°€ET 785°€61
616'5SE'8E § ovI'pL8'SE  § LETO6Y'YE  § LOT'6LO'EE $ peE'IE6’6T  $
P9S'E00°TT TSYOLT 01 Tr6'L90°01 102°112Z% L58'961°8
S65°88L POL'189 698°€L9 - -
8¥9°€9¥ $80°TTY TSLLYY 0LO'SYY 0Sy'viv
TZEISL'6 799°7€0°6 12€°976'8 1€1°99L°8 LOV'T8LL
SSETSELT 889°LEL'ST S61°8TY'vT 966°'LILYT LLY'PEL'TT
6V1°100°1 yry'80I°1 69L°010°T S8EETI'T £0P'SIT'T
89¢£°01 £55°61 [4{Y! 091°s 9z9'¢
699°801 LES'YL 1S0°LY PLI'LY 78291
8L9°19C £6L'6ET S9L'65T 656°€LT 0ST1°Z61
PrL 8T8 T 0v9°50L 1 616'T19°'1 878'vT9‘1 960°LEY‘T
P8L'SES'T £98°508°1 TES'9ED'] 889°L60°T T00'SEY']
€5L°€9 YOL'TL 89919 18916 LOY'0S
SBEPETD L60'1SO°L LS8°S09°L 8SE9TI'L 65T°55T°9
009°€¥0°01 T08°CTIT'6 LSY'80T'8 9L9'6VL8 678'T16°L
STTY9E'S $ S68°L0S'Y $ So1°'000'v L8T'869°C  § £TYOIEE $

9002 $00Z 00T £00C 200t

AVHA TVOSIH
SYVHA TVOSH HAIL LSV

(QHLIANVNN) SLESSY AN NI SHONVHD

HASSANNAL "JOOMLINIAT 40 ALID

SHSNAIXA WV ID0Ud INFANJYTIAOD AAVALRIA TV.LOL

sonuaaar uresSoxd sananoe adA1-ssoursnq [e10],

suonnquyuod pue syuess eide)
suonnquoo pue syread uneisdQ
suonesado 116
sonIe) [eIuaYy
19M3S pue IR
1$901AI3S JOJ Safaey))
:sananor 2dA)-ssoursngg

sonuaaal weaSoxd pue SaNIATIOE [BIUSWILIDACS [B10],

suonngryuod pue sjues rende)
suonnquuod pue syuesd SunersdQ
woddns Ayrunuuio)
Arexqr onqnd
UOIEDIIAI PUE SYIBJ
$19911$ PUE SPEOY
JUAUILIDAOF [RIoUDD)
:S90IAIAS 10] SIFTRYD)
:SANIANOY [BIUSUILIOAOD)
SHNNIATA WV IDO0Ud

SASNAIXT LNJWNIYFAOD AYVINLRI TV.LOL
saniAnoe adA3-ssauisng [B10],

suonerado 116

sanIde] [eiusy

IOMOS PUR 10)Bp
:sonianoe adK)-ssousng

SONIATIOR [BJUSUITLIDA0F [R10],

1qop uLIa}-8U0] o SaIAL]
[=10ie)
woneonpa nuc
1oddns Ljrunuwo))
Arexqu o1qng
UOESIOAT PUE SHIBJ
ety o1qng
$1901]S pUE SpEOY
A1a3e8 o11qnd
JUSUNLIDA0S [BISUID)
ISANTATIOY [RIUSUILIZA0D)
SHSNAJIXH



-0/~

ECP'86T L $ Y69v9€’L $ L58'660°0  § erseL’s  § IL9'EIP'Y $

T06'009°€ SIS'LI8'T T8Y'T01°T £9€12€°T 091°€89°C
1€5°L69°E $ 6LI'LYS'Y $ SLE'ce6'e 6S0'PIvE  § T1S0EL’T $

£61°668'67  $ ¥01°798°ST  § LT8'985'¢T  § 6LS'STI'ET $ £1€L99TC  §

265016 629°6LE 066'S6€ 689°60€ 9L8'60C
00°€9T 000°052 9€0°L1E 000°0ST -
(000°09) - - - -

861°L0¢ 679°6T1 ¥56°8L 689°6S 9L8'60T
SSSYRE6T SLY'T8Y'ST LEBO61'ET 068°5187C LEV'LSY'TT
(007°€90) (000°0ST) (9£0°L1E) (000°0ST) -
(000°L19) (000°00€) - - -

- - - PL1T) -

€1T'TES 01£°901 £09'79 0S1'62Y £78°86
690°L8T°1 £OP'IEL £9E°9EY LYY 661 62L'98L
0L8'OLIY 78E°STr'E 6£T'180°C P96°ELS'E 870°08L'E
SSL0E6 T LYE68°T 8ETYERT 919v60°1 9L6°690°1
188°S1€°E £08°60L°T SSP066°1 £L9°565°1 9GETEY1
9L1°860°01 8LLTI69°8 TTT88 L 966°S9L L 68L'PY9'L

166'626'S $ TSY'ELY'S $ £EL'BITE  § 817°601'8 ¢ 91L'8¥9°L $

INFWNIFAOD AAVIARI TV.IOL

sonanoe adA1-ssamsngg
SONIAIOE [EJLUIUILIDAOD)

SIFSSV LAN NI HONVYHD

INHANIFAOD AUV TVIOL
sanranor adA)-ssauisng 210,

SI9JSUEL],

pung wjauag wawikorduigy 1504 0} suonnqgrIuoe)

sSurIes JUSTISIAUT PAIOLISAIU()

sanianoe adAy-ssauisng
SOTIANOE JUDILTLIAAOF [BI0 ],

sIajsueL]

pun, yauag uswkojduwig 1504 01 SUONNQLIuO))

sjosse Jeydeo jo jesodsip uo sso
SNODUB|[PISTA
sSuwres pajoLsau)
SIXE] JOYJO PUT ‘QUWI0dU] ‘S3[EBS LS
soxe) a0
syuLad pue sasuodI
soxe) uondo ea0]
saxey Auadorg
SoXe],
ISOTIANIE [BIUSUILIDAOL)

SLHESSVY LAN NI SHONVHD ¥dHILO ANV SHNANHAHA TVUINED

(0zL'96s'ce) ¢ (O1v'Lor'8l)  § (0L6'06Y'LD)  $ (LST'06ELT) $ (Tr9'escgl)  §

Y0£060°€ 988'LEV'T T6¥'90L T $L9T10T Y8TELY'T
(rz0'L89°ST)  $  (96T°5€6°0T)  $ (zor'Lel'6l) $ (egror'6l) $ (926'9TL'0D)  $

900T $00T 00T £00T 00T
AVIA TVOSIH

900C "0t ZINNT

(QINANIILNODY SUVHA TVOSIH OMI ISV SLHSSY LN NI SHONVHO

HASSHNNHEL "JOOMINIYE 40 ALD

ASNIIXH LAN INFANIHAOD AUVININL TV.LOL

sonianoe ad£1-ssaursng
SOLIAIIOE [CIUSUILIIAON)
FNNTATY/(ASNIIXD LAN



-LL-

600Cre 8] § CTCIGCIEl § €SE 1961 $ 6S6TILTI $ 119°6TT°6 § 8LL9960 $ €SLTYEET § 1€0%88°9 § vTOLYIL § 09¥'152°8  §
LLOTYT 6¥9'v6 819011 129°08 175°€9 SIL0S €£9°61 768l (4] 87 S9
1L5°19¢ 9ZL895 S8Toey Sov‘9Ty 90T 11¥ 8SY16€ 60L°TEE 859°T61 Er6 181 660°10T
£09°819'¥1 I7L'6€56 188°6S¥'T1 YYL'LLT'6 88YPS8°S LLO'LYL'E 65706701 606°9¥Ey 9€0°S19'Y THLIYED
88£CT0'E 900C56'T 695°7S6'T 681°L26'C 9L£°968°C 8TS'LLL'T 756'66VT TLS'TEET €98°SPET 1LTT0LT
: § - § - § - § - $ - § - § - § - § e8e9  §
C61LLPSl § 69V'80SO1 § COLT89FT $ 8IF030FI § 88SBEOLI § OLSLSI'PI § 060°CSH'IT § 790°0¥E'6  $ ILV'P66'9 § 6650VYS §
SO1°LLY'SY 697°805°91 S0L‘T89'F1 81¥'080v1 8865°8€0LT 9LS°L81'Y1 060°TSY11 Z90°0vE6 1LY'¥66%0 665 0Y'S
: § - § - § - § - § - § - $ - § - § - §

9002 §00T $002 £00¢ 200t 1002 000¢ 6661 8661 L661

YVHX TVOSId
SYVHA TVOSIA NHL LSV

TALIANYNID SANNd TVINAANITAOD SHONVIVE ANNA

HASSANNEL ‘AOOMINTIT HO ALID

Spuny [eIuawuIIA0g 1910 [[B [BI0],

UONEONPa pUE JUIWIDIOFUI FNIP JOJ PIAIISY
saredar 199178 J0] PIAIDSY
s100fo1d [ejrdes J0j paalasoy
SADIAIIS JGOP JOJ PAAIISIY
paAIasay
paATasaIu()
Spuny [BIUSWILIIAOCD YO [V

punj [euad [e10],
PaAIISaIU)

PAAIDSY
puny [esouan



-8L-

(o8ed Suimo[[o] uo panunuod)

PEY'6S9°T (ogs'oeL) STY'898 SLI'8LL (06L06£1) (S1Z°0¥8°0) SPSILED'E 008°€11'T (012°06T°Y) (LT8'90¥'T) s puadxa (12pun) 1940
SONUIADI JO SSIIXY

768°0LT'6T 112°97T'8C 91€'YT6'ET TI6'0VE'ET 086805 4T 66V T6Y'LT 181°06£°81 6L9°€60°61 6V1°6L6'1T S8 1¥Z'61 samipuadxa (g0,
0€8'781°C 65V TL6T [SASTH £STP6S'T SETOIS PETTIET SET'IET'] 00¥°00¢'T TE9'6LE 611°L60°T Jedroutiy
LLT'L96 LLE'ELO'T 9£5'T66 99Tyl 1L9°LY0°1 680°TET‘T LOL'€ET6 628666 965908 90t"LT6 Isa1)u]
20[A195 199
000°L19 000°00¢ - - - - - - - - pung sigouag juswko[dwy 150 03 HONNQLIUOD)
115269 0$6'008°S 795'920'e $TT'606'C £69°€01°9 61€°6ZS 11 T88'L9L'E 128°6L1'S 9ZL'1¥9'6 00r'vE6'L Kepno [ende)
S6e°S - 0Z6'y 091°S 979t £ryve 8LI'TE 08L'1T TSE'ST [ a4 %4 Pmo
£65°1€ 879°01 8Tl $96°C1 T€6'ST S61°¢l 0£1°7C S66'y 001°Y 612°01 uoneanps Snu(g
epTIve £6L6ET 1£0°8€T ELEYST (S a7A £0L'091 0v6°'081 LIT'LPL ¥86°€91 S61°0L1 poddns funuwuo)y
1L0°6Y9°] €LL'BIS'T 78E'YOY'1 TLY'6TY'l 8L IYT'T PLOGTT'T $61°970°1 8ESYS6 700'€89 ¥18°08S Areiquy o1iqng
SOV p8T'1 910'6T1°1 SLE'ES0'T 68L'EE0‘T 1L0'8€6 L90°098 91¢£'868 078,08 yTsiLTL P65 119 UoNEaIdIL pue SYIed
£5L°€9 POLTL 89919 18¥'1S LOY'0S SS6'LY 0C8'65 TTL'8S £9L'18 T9L'0S ey orqng
$T8ILY'E S9L081'E 0LE'8ST'E LSY'LET'E 891'€CS'T 81¥'8TE'T 888°910°C S12'096°1 01¥'zr8'1 69L'TOL'] S$129.1S pUE SPTOY
L6S'SOV'6 CEV'EIL'S 10L°050°8 089°91Z'8 VLS LTL'L 199°901°9 TIT'ESL'S LSE'LBTS 095 118y TS8LTl'Y Kyayes o1qnd
6T LSY'Y £6T°0TT'Y yr9'L16'E 96¥'€ES'E 959°991°¢ 179758 679'81S'T 6L0°1LY'T 006'T1Z°C 1667161 JUDUINLIDAOF [RIoUdD)

STANLIANIIXH

087°0¢6'1¢ 189°Co1'LT 1PLT6 YT 060°611%C 061°811°¢€T $8TTSOET 9TL'EE0TT 6LV LOTIT 6£6'889°L1 8€0°5£891 SAONIATI TVLIOL
C1TTES 01£901 £09°%9 1S1'6er £78°86 £6£°€9 LLE'SO P6LTE 0LY'TT S91°LT SINUIAIL IO
690°L87°1 COP'IEL £9€'0¢Y LYY'66Y 67L'08L 67£'600°1 PP0'8ZS'T T01°LL8‘] 989'798 SGL'EV6 Apadoud pue Louow jo saspy
PL8'60T'S 0881 LYY SPR'EPS'E €58°1TEY STI'CHY'y 6LL'OEY'Y 0860207 TLE'P86'E LOL'L8Y'E PIVEIP'E [PIUILIDA0S1AIU]
TTEYET CP8i68T pTL'081 7TL'0ST 698°0ST PEI'OTI 0£8'6€1 66£'66 79168 TLY'SL $22IAIDS 10§ Sa8ITYD)
S00°T6¢ LS89TT 069°0£T 856'€ET 785'€61 965'60C $68'161 SPI'481 LIT'EST 6V0TET $99J pue SauLy
SSL0E6'] £08°60L°T SSP'066'T £L9°G65°1 95€'TEY' T TIS'SPL SP6'0ES 829'¢90°1 656'0€L 90E'G9E" T syuad pue sasuedr]
POPYETT § LLS'6S0°0T  § 190'0vL°LT 987°888°01 § £89'710°01 § 125°L9t°91  § $69°955'ST ¢ 170°L96'ET § SEL'OVETT $ LES'PLSOT § soxe],

SANNIATY

900¢C 5007 $00T £00T 700 100T 000T 6661 3661 L661
SYVIX TVOSH NAL ISV

(GIIIAVND SANNT TVINTANTHAOD "SHONVIVE AN NI SHONVHD

THASSANNIL AOOMINTIL 10 ALD



%

-6L-

871 % 9°¢l % ¢l % PEl % 6€l % €61 % 8l % 91 % SP1 % 6L
CPTeSTL  $ (0£5°086)  $ PrLISE  § 8L18TS § sozzoet ¢ (0Iv'Les') § 0SL'0LS'8S  § 865780'C  § otv'eryr §  (LT800YT)
608°667"Y (000°052) 61£°€87°C (000°0S7) S66TSEY 5087 SOT'EE6'Y (zoz'1e) 9P9°6EL'Y -
(07£89) - (181°1%) (6£9'98) (600 %ST) (P1€TD) (S6L°99) (vz8'6) (6ev'cD) -
(Ly'86£°7) - - (19¢°€12'9) (966'T9¥'S) (082'810°¢) - (826'¢56°1) (£59'1€£°E) -
000°0£4'Z - - 000°00£9 000°628°S 66£TED'E - 05S€€6°T 208'S1Z'¢ -
000°008"y - 000°689'¢ - 000'STY'y - 000°000°S - 0£6°8L8"Y -
(800'1£5°L) (0SL'TL6'S) (00S°12°8) (000°008‘S) (000°55#*S) (000°00S*+) (000°st€'S) (000'STE D) (000°0St't) (68€'¥9¢°L)
899°L9T°L  $ osLzeL's  § 000°168°L  $ 000'0S5'S 000'SSH'S  § 000005y $ 000°S¥E's  § 000°S1EY  § 000°0st'y  § 68 79¢°L
9007 S00T $00T £00T 700z 1002 000z 6661 2661 L661

SYVHA TVOSI NAL LSV

(@EIIANVNND (INNIINOD) SANIH TVINHANIIAOD "SHONVIVE AN NI SHONVHO

HISSINNAL ‘JOOMINTHE 40 ALID

saunyipuadxa [epdesuou
30 98ruadrad e se 3014105 199(]

Qouefeq pung ul 98ureyD) 19N
(sasn) $201N0S JUrdUBUIY JOIO [BI0],

JUNOISIP puOg

juade M0I2S3 PUoq papunjal Jo Jatuke
spuoq Surpunjai Jo spaadoid

spuoq uonesdijqo [e1auad Jo spaadold
MO SIJSueI],

ur s.Q)sueLy,

(sgsn) SIOANOS
ONIDNVNLI ¥3HLO



-08-

“PIIAD] 219M SIXEB) 9] YoIyMm 10J porrad o sjuosardar sty
(Ka9] xe1 GOOT o Juesardar pmom reak [eosty 900z) Aad] Jeak xey Surpaoaxd oy 03 spuodso.Liod pajsy] Jeak [BSI] S 4

% L®LT L18°LO6'ESTS 650 9L6°TLSOEY'T 9€Y 9¥9°09 05591861 0S€Y00°066 0¥9°601°99¢ 900¢
% Y0'8T €9CTEL C08'Y 650 00V LSTLYE ] 0TI'PIP'SS OST'LIL'ST 0SP*TSE 606 089°€L9€9¢ §00T
% 1T°8T 608°STS 1¥S Yy 650 $89096°08Z°1 01L°T8STS SLY1EL0T 00S‘€8I°Er8 008C9V'¥9¢ ¥00T
% £¥'8T £1£950°88¢ 650 £66°80¥°LYT 1 £20°050°6S 00%°LS9°1T 0S9V1ET6L 088°98£PLE £00T
% LL'8T 89L°S65°0V6°C 650 YT IE9°eET’] PYL'8T6'LS STT'6LT 81 SLOVLYLYY 009°8¥5°69€ 00T
% S8°8T 98C°060°0L1°E 650 S06°5T6706 §99°980°LS STT'EIV'TT CLS'OTS 198 Ovp*606°CLT 100T
% 8S'8T 79€°01€°610°C L0 0L6°0£0°€98 SOT'LLS 1S 00§°T67°01 CTYE10'9¢€S OvvLY1°69T 000T
% 1¥'8C $0€'L0TTIST £L’0 TYS'LEO'66L LLY910YY 0SL'L88°01 SLY*€01°80S 0¥8°620°9¢T 6661
% LTUBT 09T'6¥6°LLST eL’o 9¢T 1YL 8TL 9€8°cEL9E SLO‘I8I‘TI STS16LTLY 008‘¥€0'80T 8661
% ¥1'8C 006°184°L9¢"C § €L0 §  S88°tTL999 §  089°ChIVE §  SL8°999°11 $  0S900v'LEY $  089TIT'c8T $ L661
HOTVA dTdVXV.L d0TVA HIVE XVL  dNTVA QdSSHSSV ALdddOdd Wavd TVILNAAISHd TVIDYHIIWINOD x VA
TVALOVY 40 HTIdVXVLTVNLOV JTdVXVL TVIOL TYNOSHAd TVOSId
dOVINGDYEd V SV JadLVIALLSH
HATVA dISSHSSY
HTdVXVL
SUVEX NIL ISV

(QHLIANVNN) ALIHdOUd 40 HN'IVA TVNLOV AILVINLLSH ANV AHISSHSSY

HASSHNNAL "QOOMINTIH 40 ALIO



CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES (UNAUDITED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

OVERLAPPING
DIRECT RATE RATE *

CITY OF WILLIAMSON
FISCAL YEAR ** BRENTWOOD COUNTY
1997 $ 737100 2.91/100
1998 737100 2.91/100
1999 .73 /100 2.91/100
2000 .73 /7100 2.91/100
2001 .73 /100 2.91/100
2002 597100 2.57/100
2003 .59 /100 2.57/100
2004 .59 /100 2.79/100
2005 597100 2.79/100
2006 597100 2.79/100

* Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply
to property owners within the City of Brentwood.

* The fiscal year listed corresponds to the preceding tax year levy (2006 fiscal year would represent the 2005 tax
This represents the period for which the taxes were levied.
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD. TENNESSEE

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING SALES TAX RATES (UNAUDITED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Williamson State of
Fiscal Year City Direct Rate County Tennessee
1997 1.125 % 1.125 % 6.00 %
1998 1.125 1.125 6.00
1999 1.125 1.125 6.00
2000 1.125 1.125 6.00
2001 1.125 1.125 6.00
2002 1.125 1.125 6.00
2003 1.125 1.125 7.00
2004 1.125 1.125 7.00
2005 1.125 1.125 7.00
2006 1.125 1.125 7.00

Note: The total local option sales tax of 2.25% consist of the City's
rate of 1.125% and County rate of 1.125%, earmarked entirely for
Williamson County schools. The local option tax can be increased
by a maximum of .50% to 1.175% by a referendum vote of the
citizens.
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT (UNAUDITED)

AS OF JUNE 30. 2006

ESTIMATED
DEBT ESTIMATED SHARE OF
OUTSTANDING PERCENTAGE DIRECT AND
GOVERNMENTAL UNIT (IN THOUSANDS) APPLICABLE (1) OVERLAPPING DEBT (2)
Direct:
City of Brentwood 3 27,195 100.0% $ 27,195
Overlapping:
Williamson County 342,253 33.9% 116,034
Total $ 369,448 $ 143,229

(1) Determined by ratio of assessed valuation of property subject to taxation in City of Brentwood to valuation of
property subject to taxation in Williamson County.

(2) Amount in debt outstanding column multiplied by percentage applicable.
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE (UNAUDITED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

WATER & SEWER REVENUE BONDS

UTILITY LESS: NET

FISCAL SERVICE OPERATING AVAILABLE DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS***

YEAR CHARGES EXPENSES** REVENUE PRINCIPAL  INTEREST TOTAL COVERAGE
1997 $ 6,773,383 § 4,223,159 % 2,550,224 $ 1,110,909 § 714226 § 1,825,135 1.40
1998 7,337,212 4,290,543 3,046,669 1,075,909 615,930 1,691,839 1.80
1999 7,823,211 4,247,068 3,576,143 1,200,909 680,431 1,881,340 1.90
2000 8,196,249 4,658,988 3,537,261 1,165,002 614,839 1,779,841 1.99
2001 10,220,200 5,169,932 5,050,268 1,225,001 555,813 1,780,814 2.84
2002 10,481,682 5,513,158 4,968,524 1,200,000 652,953 1,852,953 2.68
2003 10,547,074 6,441,834 4,105,240 1,185,000 582,659 1,767,659 2.32
2004 10,971,029 6,654,397 4,316,632 1,280,000 468,904 1,748,904 2.47
2005 11,781,930 6,771,726 5,010,204 1,335,000 415,304 1,750,304 2.86
2006 13,320,702 7,551,700 5,769,002 1,365,000 321,380 1,686,380 3.42

*Includes nonoperating revenues (includes water and sewer tap fees beginning in 2001).
*+Does not include depreciation and amortization.
**+Does not include payments on State loans.
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Kraft

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor and Board of Commissioners
City of Brentwood
Brentwood, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Brentwood, Tennessee
(the “City”™), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 10, 2006. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to

financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
~States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of
the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control
over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively
low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to
the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal controls
over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

We noted other matters that we reported to the City’s management in a separate letter dated November 10, 2006.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Commissioners, management and the City’s
regulatory agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

,A{”:chfﬂfii?f22r PLAC

Nashville, Tennessee
November 10, 2006
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CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2006

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

2005-1 Internal control over construction contract disbursement processing

Status: The finding has been resolved during 2006.

CURRENT YEAR FINDING

None
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